
Generated 11/5/2015 2:25 PM 

 

TOWN OF YUCCA VALLEY 
PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING 

 
The Mission of the Town of Yucca Valley is to  

provide a government that is responsive to its citizens  
to ensure a safe and secure environment  

while maintaining the highest quality of life. 
 
 
 

PLANNING COMMISSION: 6:00 PM 
TUESDAY, NOVEMBER 10, 2015 

 
YUCCA VALLEY COMMUNITY CENTER 

YUCCA ROOM 
57090 TWENTYNINE PALMS HWY 

YUCCA VALLEY, CA 92284 

* * * *  
Planning Commission 

Jeff Drozd, Commissioner 
Jeff Evans, Commissioner 

Charles McHenry, Commissioner 
Steven Whitten, Vice Chairman 

Vicki Bridenstine, Chairman 
* * * *  

TOWN ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICE: 
760-369-7207 

www.yucca-valley.org 

http://www.yucca-valley.org/


2 | P a g e  

AGENDA 

MEETING OF THE 

PLANNING COMMISSION 

TUESDAY, NOVEMBER 10, 2015 

6:00 PM 

The Town of Yucca Valley complies with the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990.  If 
you require special assistance to attend or participate in this meeting, please call the 
Town Clerk’s Office at 760-369-7209 at least 48 hours prior to the meeting. 
 
An agenda packet for the meeting, and any additional documents submitted to the 
majority of the Planning Commission, are available for public view in the Town Hall 
lobby and with respect to the staff agenda packet, on the Town’s website, 
www.yucca-valley.org, prior to the Regular Meeting.  Any materials submitted to the 
Agency after distribution of the agenda packet will be available for public review in 
the Town Clerk’s Office during normal business hours and will be available for review 
at the Regular Meeting.  For more information on an agenda item or the agenda 
process, please contact the Town Clerk’s office at 760-369-7209 ext. 226.  
 
If you wish to comment on any subject on the agenda, or any subject not on the 
agenda during public comments, please fill out a card and give it to the Commission 
Secretary.  The Chair will recognize you at the appropriate time.  Comment time is 
limited to 3 minutes. 
 
Where appropriate or deemed necessary, action may be taken on any item listed in 
the agenda. 

OPENING CEREMONIES:   

CALL TO ORDER:   

ROLL CALL:   

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:   

PRESENTATIONS, INTRODUCTIONS, RECOGNITIONS:   

APPROVAL OF AGENDA:   

CONSENT AGENDA:   

All items listed on the consent calendar are considered to be routine matters or are 

considered formal documents covering previous Planning Commission instruction.  The 

items listed on the consent calendar may be enacted by one motion and a second.  

There will be no separate discussion of the consent calendar items unless a member of 

the Planning Commission or Town Staff requests discussion on specific consent 

http://www.yucca-valley.org/


3 | P a g e  

calendar items at the beginning of the meeting.  Public requests to comment on 

consent calendar items should be filed with the Commission Secretary before the 

consent calendar is called. 

MINUTES APPROVAL:   

1. Planning Commission - Regular Meeting - Oct 13, 2015 6:00 PM  

Recommendation: 
That the Planning Commission approves as submitted the minutes of 
Planning Commission meeting of October 13, 2015. 

PUBLIC HEARING:   

2. Environmental Assessment, EA 09-15 ; Variance, V 02-15; Land Use Compliance 
Review, LUCR 02-15 Social Security Administration Building  

Recommendation:  
Environmental Assessment, EA 09-15:  That the Planning Commission 

finds the project exempt from CEQA pursuant to Section 15301, Class 01, 

Existing Facilities. 

Variance, V 02-15:  That the Planning Commission approves V-02-15, 
approving a 17.5 foot encroachment into a recorded building setback 
area,  based upon the information contained within the staff report and 
the required findings. 
 
Land Use Compliance Review, LUCR 02-15: That the Planning 

Commission approves LUCR 02-15, approving the construction of a 554 

square foot addition to the existing Social Security Administration 

building, based upon the findings, the information contained within the 

staff report and the recommended conditions of approval 

DEPARTMENT REPORTS:   

3. Five Year Capital Improvement Program  

Recommendation:  
That the Planning Commission: 

A. Finds that the project is exempt from CEQA in accordance 
with Section 15378(b) (4) and Section 15061 (b) (3) of the 
California Environmental Quality Act.  The Capital 
Improvement Program (CIP) is not a project nor is there 
possibility of a significant effect on the environment from 
the program.  Further the CIP does not result in a 
commitment to any specific project. 



4 | P a g e  

 

B. Recommends that the Planning Commission recommends 
that Town Council approve and adopt the Five Year Capital 
Improvement Program for Fiscal Years 2015/2016 through 
2019/2020 

FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS:   

PUBLIC COMMENTS:   

In order to assist in the orderly and timely conduct of the meeting, the Planning 

Commission takes this time to consider your comments on items of concern which are 

on the Closed Session or not on the agenda.  When you are called to speak, please 

state your name and community of residence.  Please limit your comments to three (3) 

minutes or less.  Inappropriate behavior which disrupts, disturbs or otherwise impedes 

the orderly conduct of the meeting will result in forfeiture of your public comment 

privileges.  The Planning Commission is prohibited by State law from taking action or 

discussing items not included on the printed agenda. 

STAFF REPORTS AND COMMENTS:   

• Private Land Development Report 
• Capital Projects Update Report 

COMMISSIONER REPORTS AND COMMENTS:   

ANNOUNCEMENTS:   

The next meeting of the Planning Commission will be held on November 24, 2015 at 
6:00 PM. 

ADJOURNMENT:   



Generated 11/3/2015 10:38 AM 

TOWN OF YUCCA VALLEY  
PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING MINUTES 

OCTOBER 13, 2015 

OPENING CEREMONIES 

  called the meeting to order at 6:00 PM. 

CALL TO ORDER 

ROLL CALL 

 
PRESENT: Evans, McHenry, Whitten 
ABSENT: Drozd (Excused), Bridenstine (Excused) 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Jeff Evans, Commissioner 

SECONDER: Charles McHenry, Commissioner 

AYES: Jeff Evans, Charles McHenry, Steven Whitten 

EXCUSED: Jeff Drozd, Vicki Bridenstine 

CONSENT AGENDA 

MINUTES APPROVAL 

1.    Approval of September 22, 2015 Planning Commission Regular Meeting Minutes 

Recommendation: 
That the Planning Commission approval as submitted the minutes of the Planning 
Commission meeting of September 22, 2015. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT ON CONSENT AGENDA 
 
None 
 

MOTION 
That the Planning Commission approve the Consent Agenda 

 

RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Jeff Evans, Commissioner 

SECONDER: Charles McHenry, Commissioner 

AYES: Jeff Evans, Charles McHenry, Steven Whitten 

EXCUSED: Jeff Drozd, Vicki Bridenstine 

 

1.1

Packet Pg. 5

M
in

u
te

s 
A

cc
ep

ta
n

ce
: 

M
in

u
te

s 
o

f 
O

ct
 1

3,
 2

01
5 

6:
00

 P
M

  (
M

in
u

te
s 

A
p

p
ro

va
l)



YUCCA VALLEY PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES  October 13, 2015 

2 | P a g e  

DEPARTMENT REPORTS 

 
2. Environmental Assessment, EA-05-15; Site Plan Review, SPR 01-15 Princeton Equine  

Recommendation: 
Environmental Assessment, EA 05-15: The review and approval of the Old Town Specific 
Plan (OTSP) included a Program Environmental Impact Report (EIR). The EIR evaluated 
future projects within boundaries of the OTSP. The proposed project was evaluated to 
determine if additional CEQA documentation needed to be prepared. The proposed 
project will not have any effects not considered within the scope of the Program EIR. 
The project is consistent with the Program EIR and will not create any additional impacts 
not previously considered. No additional environmental review is required. 
 
Site Plan Review, SPR 01-15: That the Planning Commission approves SPR 01-15 based 
upon the information contained within the staff report, the required findings and the 
recommended conditions of approval. 
 
STAFF REPORT 
 
Deputy Town Manager Stueckle provided the staff report.  He provided an overview of 
the proposed project, which was a proposed equine clinic which included construction 
of an approximately 2,720 square foot treatment and office area, 576 square feet of 
outdoor holding pens, a 60 foot in diameter round pen, a 400 square foot euthanasia 
enclosure, parking and landscaping.  The proposed site was vacant land and was 
designated Old Town Industrial Commercial (OTIC), and veterinarian clinics and animal 
hospitals are a permitted use for this zoning designation.   The project was condition to 
construct sidewalks on both Benecia and Inca Trails, and underground storm water 
drainage along the northeastern frontage of the project.  The proposed landscaping was 
also doubt tolerant.  Staff found that the project’s architectural design was consistent 
with the Town’s Commercial Design Guidelines and the Old Town Specific Plan 
Guidelines.  Staff also said that while the Development Code required that all driveway, 
aisles, turning and maneuvering areas be paved, staff recommended that the 
requirement be met with the installation of decomposed granite around the south and 
east portion of the site due to the concerns associated with equine activities on 
hardscape.  Staff said that the applicant had agreed that the holding pens and the round 
pen will maintain a 5 foot setback from the property line.  The Conditions of Approval 
also required that the applicant submit an odor, dust and vector control plan to address 
those issues.  The project was also condition to form maintenance assessment district 
for street and drainage purposes.  
 
PUBLIC COMMENT ITEM 2 
 
Christina Kayvon-Pierce, applicant, spoke in support of the project.  She said that the 
project would provide equine medical services to the Morongo Basin and the Coachella 
Valley areas and that the project would create jobs.   

1.1

Packet Pg. 6

M
in

u
te

s 
A

cc
ep

ta
n

ce
: 

M
in

u
te

s 
o

f 
O

ct
 1

3,
 2

01
5 

6:
00

 P
M

  (
M

in
u

te
s 

A
p

p
ro

va
l)



YUCCA VALLEY PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES  October 13, 2015 

3 | P a g e  

 
Dr. Mirona Petrus, veterinarian for the project, provided information about the medical 
services that would be provided.  She said that the clinic was designed for safety, ease of 
use and the California Medical Board standards of care.  
 
Bill Warner, project representative, spoke in support of the project and offered to 
answer questions.  He said that the applicant has review the conditions of approval and 
agreed to them.  
 
CLOSE PUBLIC COMMENT ITEM 2 
 
Commissioner McHenry said he was glad to see the project come forward, and that it 
was a needed service.  He noted that the Conditions of Approval use the masculine 
pronoun when referring to the applicant despite her being female.   He asked staff if 
parking would be prohibited on one side of Benecia all the way to Hopi; staff said that it 
would.  Spoke in support of the use of decomposed granite, and said he was in support 
of the project. 
 
Commissioner Evans said that it was a needed service for the community.  He asked the 
applicant how the premier fences would be secured in case an animal escaped a pen.  
He also asked the applicant about trailer access.  The applicant said that the gates to the 
site would be on sensors so that they would only open and close when a vehicle 
approached them.  The applicant said that the driveway was designed so that you could 
go around the building with a trailer if that was needed. 
 
Commissioner Evans asked if there would ever be a chance for overnight occupancy.  
The applicant said that they will not be keeping animals overnight, and that anything 
requiring 24 hour care would be referred to an animal hospital.  Commissioner Evans 
also asked about any potential issues caused by the projects proximity to a hotel and 
retail area.  The applicant said that the Chino Hills equine hospital is located in a 
residential area, and also said that the California Medical Board standards required that 
any manure be immediately removed, and that euthanized animals be picked up within 
an hour. The applicant said that they only intend to have one trailer coming in at a time, 
so dust should not be problem.  
 
Commissioner Whitten asked if facility would be equine only.  Applicant said that facility 
would be primarily for horses but the doctor would be qualified to work on livestock.  
Alpaca, goats or llamas could be treated in the same facilities horses.  Cattle would not 
be treated at the facility.  Commissioner Whitten said that the project was a good fit for 
the Town, and said that he was in support of the project.   
 
Commissioner Whitten said that he didn’t see any conditions relating to the masonry 
and wrought iron wall, and no mention of it complying with the Old Town Specific Plan.  
Staff said that the Commission could add condition P11 that would state “The project 
would be designed with sump stone walls along the south and east frontages and the 
slum stone and wrought iron fencing along the Benecia and Inca frontages consistent 

1.1

Packet Pg. 7

M
in

u
te

s 
A

cc
ep

ta
n

ce
: 

M
in

u
te

s 
o

f 
O

ct
 1

3,
 2

01
5 

6:
00

 P
M

  (
M

in
u

te
s 

A
p

p
ro

va
l)



YUCCA VALLEY PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES  October 13, 2015 

4 | P a g e  

with the Old Town Specific Plan.”  Commissioner Whitten said he would like that 
condition added.  Commissioner Whitten commented that the soil would have to be 
treated for urine eventually.  The applicant said that the animals would spend the 
majority of time inside the facility in stalls which would have wood shavings and 
drainage systems, and the outdoor soil would be raked and replenished when 
necessary.  Commissioner Whitten asked about the signage for the project.  Staff said 
that the applicant hadn’t submitted material regarding signs.  Commissioner Whitten 
asked staff if the Old Town Specific Plan or the Development Code took precedence if 
there was a conflict.  Staff said that they were intended to work together.   
 
 
MOTION 
Commissioner McHenry moved that the Planning Commission find that the project, EA 
05-15, is consistent with Old Town Specific (OTSP) Program Environmental Impact 
Report (EIR), and that additional environmental review was not required, ad that the 
Planning Commission approves SPR 01-15 based upon the information contained within 
the staff report, the required findings and the recommended conditions of approval 
with the addition of condition P11 which would require that the project be designed 
with sump stone walls along the south and east frontages and the slum stone and 
wrought iron fencing along the Benecia and Inca frontages consistent with the Old Town 
Specific Plan.  Commissioner Evans seconded the motion, and the motion passed 
unanimously.  
 

RESULT: APPROVED AS AMENDED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Charles McHenry, Commissioner 

SECONDER: Jeff Evans, Commissioner 

AYES: Jeff Evans, Charles McHenry, Steven Whitten 

EXCUSED: Jeff Drozd, Vicki Bridenstine 

FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 

None 

PUBLIC COMMENTS 

Kevin Hall, Yucca Valley, spoke about an issue regarding animal control.  

STAFF REPORTS AND COMMENTS 

Staff provided an update on the status of current and upcoming private land 
development project.   Staff also provided an update on the status of current capital 
projects.  

COMMISSIONER REPORTS AND COMMENTS 

Commissioner Evans thanked staff for their work. He also commented on the lack of 
yellow striping near the medians just west of Dumosa on Hwy 62.  Staff said that the 

1.1

Packet Pg. 8

M
in

u
te

s 
A

cc
ep

ta
n

ce
: 

M
in

u
te

s 
o

f 
O

ct
 1

3,
 2

01
5 

6:
00

 P
M

  (
M

in
u

te
s 

A
p

p
ro

va
l)



YUCCA VALLEY PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES  October 13, 2015 

5 | P a g e  

project was signed off by Caltrans and they will look into the issue and report on why 
that section was different.  
 
Commissioner McHenry thanked staff.  He asked if there had been any response from 
Caltrans regarding the intersection Sage of Hwy 62.  Staff said that Caltrans has agreed 
to install 5 curve ahead chevrons, and Caltrans said they will be installed by end of 
October.   
 
Commissioner Whitten thanked staff.  He also commented on the dangerous of 
intersection of Sage and Hwy 62, and spoke against distracted driving.  He also spoke 
about the issues caused by motorist making illegal turning motions on Hwy 62 in front of 
AMPM and Sonic.  Staff said that they had previously requested delineators for that 
area and Caltrans denied the request.  

ANNOUNCEMENTS 

The next meeting of the Planning Commission will be held on October 27, 2015 at 6:00 
PM. 

ADJOURNMENT 

 The meeting adjourned at 6:54 pm. 

 

Respectfully Submitted, 

 

Allison Brucker 
Commission Secretary 

1.1

Packet Pg. 9

M
in

u
te

s 
A

cc
ep

ta
n

ce
: 

M
in

u
te

s 
o

f 
O

ct
 1

3,
 2

01
5 

6:
00

 P
M

  (
M

in
u

te
s 

A
p

p
ro

va
l)



Town of Yucca Valley 

PLANNING COMMISSION STAFF REPORT 

To: Honorable Chair and Planning Commissioners 

From: Diane Olsen, Planning Technician  

Shane Stueckle, Deputy Town Manager 

Date: October 8, 2015 

Meeting Date: November 10, 2015 

  

Subject: Environmental Assessment, EA 09-15 ; Variance, V 02-15; Land Use 

Compliance Review, LUCR 02-15 Social Security Administration Building 

 
Recommendation: 
Environmental Assessment, EA 09-15:  That the Planning Commission finds the project exempt 

from CEQA pursuant to Section 15301, Class 01, Existing Facilities. 

Variance, V 02-15:  That the Planning Commission approves V-02-15, approving a 17.5 foot 

encroachment into a recorded building setback area,  based upon the information contained 

within the staff report and the required findings. 

 

Land Use Compliance Review, LUCR 02-15: That the Planning Commission approves LUCR 02-

15, approving the construction of a 554 square foot addition to the existing Social Security 

Administration building, based upon the findings, the information contained within the staff 

report and the recommended conditions of approval 

 

Prior Commission Review:   
There has been no prior Planning Commission review of this project. 
 
Executive Summary:   
This application is for a 554 square foot addition to the existing Social Security Administration 
building located at the northwest corner of SR 62 and Palm. The Land Use Compliance Review 
process is typically required for minor additions to existing commercial structures and is 
reviewed at staff level.  This project also involves a variance to encroach 17.5 feet into the 
recorded building setback area, which requires Planning Commission action.  Therefore, the 
Land Use Compliance Review and Variance applications are before the Planning Commission for 
consideration. 
 
Order of Procedure:  

Request Staff Report  
Open Public Hearing 
Request Public Comment  

2

Packet Pg. 10



Close Public Hearing 
Commission Discussion/Questions of Staff  
Motion/Second 
Discussion on Motion 
Call the Question (Roll Call Vote) 

 
 

Case:  ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT, EA 09-15 
  VARIANCE, V 02-15 

LAND USE COMPLIANCE REVIEW, LUCR 02-15 SOCIAL SECURITY 
 

Request:    REQUEST FOR APPROVAL FOR A 554 SQUARE FOOT ADDITION TO AN EXISTING 
4,950 SQUARE FOOT SOCIAL SECURITY ADMINISTRATION BUILDING. VARIANCE, 
V 02-15 IS A REQUEST TO ENCROACH 17.5 FEET INTO THE RECORDED BUILDING 
SETBACK AREA. 

 

 Applicant:  IOTA PARTNERS, LLC  
  60351 ARNOLD MARKET RD 
  BEND, OR 97702 
 

Property Owner:  
  IOTA PARTNERS, LLC 
  60351 ARNOLD MARKET RD 
  BEND, OR 97702 
 

Representative:  
  GREG BANDELIN 
  SIXTY FIRST PLACE ARCHITECTS 
  7120 E. INDIAN SCHOOL RD STE L 
  SCOTTSDALE, AZ 85251 
 

Location: THE PROJECT IS LOCATED AT 56492 29 PALMS HWY, AT THE NORTHWEST 
CORNER OF 29 PALMS HWY AND PALM AVE AND IS FURTHER IDENTIFIED AS 
APN: 595-022-09. 

                                                                                                                                                   

Existing General Plan Land Use Designation:   
THE SITE IS DESIGNATED COMMERCIAL (C) WITH A CORRIDOR RESIDENTIAL 
OVERLAY 

 

Existing Zoning Designation:   
THE SITE IS DESIGNATED GENERAL COMMERCIAL (C-G) 

 

Surrounding General Plan Land Use Designations:  

2

Packet Pg. 11



NORTH:  LOW DENSITY RESIDENTIAL (LDR) 2.1-5.0 DU/ACRE 
SOUTH:  COMMERCIAL (C) WITH A CORRIDOR RESIDENTIAL OVERLAY 
EAST:      COMMERCIAL (C) WITH A CORRIDOR RESIDENTIAL OVERLAY 

  WEST:  COMMERCIAL (C) WITH A CORRIDOR RESIDENTIAL OVERLAY 
 

Surrounding Zoning Designations:  
NORTH:  RESIDENTIAL SINGLE FAMILY 5 UNITS PER ACRE (RS-5)  
SOUTH:  GENERAL COMMERCIAL (C-G) 
EAST:      GENERAL COMMERCIAL (C-G) 
WEST:      GENERAL COMMERCIAL (C-G) 

 

Surrounding Land Use: 
NORTH: OFFICE 
SOUTH:  PAWN SHOP, AUTO PARTS 
EAST:    GAS STATION 
WEST:     VACANT LOT 

 
  
RECOMMENDATIONS: 
 
Environmental Assessment, EA 09-15: That the Planning Commission finds that the project is 

exempt from CEQA pursuant to Section 15301, Class 01, Existing Facilities 

Variance, V 02-15:  That the Planning Commission approves V-02-15, approving a 17.5 foot 
encroachment into the recorded building setback area, based upon the information contained 
within the staff report and the required findings. 
 
Land Use Compliance Review, LUCR 02-15: That the Planning Commission approves LUCR 02-
15, approving the construction of a 554 square foot addition to the existing Social Security 
Administration building, based upon the findings, the information contained within the staff 
report and the recommended conditions of approval.  
 
 
 
 

Appeal Information: 
 
Actions by the Planning Commission, including any finding that a negative declaration be 
adopted, may be appealed to the Town Council within 10 calendar days.  Appeal filing and 
processing information may be obtained from the Planning Division of the Community 
Development Department.  Pursuant to Section 9.63.090 of the Development Code, minor 
modifications may be approved by the Planning Division if it is determined that the changes 
would not affect the findings prescribed in Section 9.63.080 of the Development Code, 
Required Findings, and that the subject of the proposed changes were not items of public 

2

Packet Pg. 12



controversy during the review and approval of the original permit, including modifications to 
phasing schedules for the project. 

2

Packet Pg. 13



I.  GENERAL INFORMATION 
 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION: The applicant is requesting approval to add 554 square feet to the 

existing 4,950 square foot Social Security Administration building.   The variance request is to 

allow the 554 square foot addition to encroach 17.5 feet into the recorded setback area. 

 
LOCATION:  The project is located at 56492 29 Palms Hwy, on the northwest corner of 29 Palms 
Hwy and Palm Avenue and is further identified as APN 595-022-09. 
 
PROJECT SYNOPSIS 
 

SITE COVERAGE 

BUILDING AREA Existing Building 
Addition 

4,950 sq ft 
554 sq ft 
 

PHASED CONSTRUCTION No 
 

FLOOD ZONE Map 8860, Zone X (areas determined to be 
outside the 0.2% annual chance floodplain). 
 

ALQUIST PRIOLO ZONE No 
 

OFF-SITE IMPROVEMENTS REQ. No 
 

ASSESSMENT DISTRICTS REQ. No 
 

RIGHT-OF-WAY DEDICATION REQ. Yes, additional 12 feet for 29 Palms Hwy. 
 

UTILITY UNDERGROUNDING All new service lines shall be underground in 
conformance to Ordinance 233, or as 
amended by Town Council. 
 

AIRPORT INFLUENCE AREA 
 
AIRPORT SAFETY REVIEW AREA: 
 

No 
 
No 

TRAILS & BIKE LANE MASTER PLAN No 
 

PUBLIC FACILITY MASTER PLAN No facilities on or adjacent to the project site. 
 

PARKS AND RECREATION MASTER PLAN No facilities on or adjacent to the project site. 
 

MASTER PLAN OF DRAINAGE No  
 

2

Packet Pg. 14



STREET LIGHTS No 
 

SPECIFIC PLAN/PLANNED DEVELOPMENT No 

GATEWAY REIMBURSEMENT DISTRICT No 

AVALON SIGNAL REIMBURSEMENT DISTRICT No 

FUTURE PLANNING COMMISSION  
ACTION REQUIRED 
 

No 

FUTURE TOWN COUNCIL 
ACTION REQUIRED 

Only if the  Commission’s action is appealed 

 
 
 
II. PROJECT ANALYSIS 
 
GENERAL PLAN CONSIDERATION:  The proposed project is located on a parcel designated as 
Commercial (C) with a Corridor Residential Overlay.   The Commercial land use district allows 
“local and regional serving retail and service uses, including uses such as shopping centers, and 
malls, small commercial centers, hotels, commercial recreation uses such as movie theaters and 
bowling alleys, restaurants, supermarkets, and personal services.  Office uses are also allowed, 
including financial, legal, insurance, and other professional office uses.  Research and 
development, technology centers, and business parks are also permitted.”  The Corridor 
Residential Overlay allows residential infill projects in three transition areas between 
commercial, mixed use and special policy areas long SR 62.   
 
ENVIRONMENTAL CONSIDERATIONS:  The project is exempt from the requirements of CEQA 

subject to Section 15301, Class 01, Existing Facilities  

 
ADJACENT LAND USES:  The project site is on the northwest corner of 29 Palms Hwy and Palm 
Avenue.   Surrounding uses include a real estate office to the north, an auto parts store and 
pawn shop to the south, a gas station to the east and a vacant lot to the west.   
  
SITE CHARACTERISTICS: The project site is an existing developed site containing the Social 
Security Administration building.   The addition is proposed to be constructed at the south west 
corner of the existing building. 
 
BUILDING ELEVATIONS:  The proposed project is an addition to an existing single story 
commercial building with a flat roof.  The architectural type of the building is santa fe style 
painted a light tan color.  The materials and colors of the addition are proposed to match the 
existing building.  Architectural renderings are attached to the staff report. 
 
PARKING:  Pursuant to Chapter 9.33 of the Development Code, parking for general office uses 

2

Packet Pg. 15



is based upon one parking space per 250 square feet of floor area.  The total square footage of 
the completed project will be 5,504 square feet.  Therefore, 22 parking spaces are required.  
One ADA parking space is required for each 25 parking spaces required, therefore one van 
accessible ADA parking space is required for the proposed project.  The applicant has identified 
the installation of 24 parking spaces, to include two ADA spaces, on the site plan.   
 
TRASH ENCLOSURE:  The required trash enclosure is located on the northwest corner of the 
property.    
 
SIGNS:  An existing wall sign is located on the south elevation of the building and no additional 
signs are proposed as a part of the project.   
 
DISCUSSION:  The proposed project is located in the General Commercial (C-G) zoning district.  
General office uses are identified as a permitted use in this zoning designation.    
 
The proposed project is an addition of 554 square feet to an existing 4,950 square foot Social 
Security Administration building.  The variance request is to encroach 17.5 feet into the 
recorded setback. 
 
There is a 68’ recorded building setback line on the property for a proposed outer highway and 
for Southern California Edison facilities.  The proposed outer highway was abandoned in 1974. 
The applicant has obtained authorization from Edison to encroach into the recorded building 
setback.  A copy of the abandonment document and the approval letter from Edison are 
attached to the staff report.   
 
Between approximately Scarvan Road and Palm, an outer highway was originally planned and 
designed to be constructed.  As noted on development patterns in the surrounding area to the 
project site, only the area on the north side of SR 62, between Scarvan and Palm, are setback 
sufficiently to allow for development of the outer highway.  Properties to the east of Palm are 
developed close to SR 62 and do not reflect the building setback area, as are properties to the 
south and west of the project site.  Therefore the planned outer highway created a setback that 
is not applied to other similarly zoned properties in the surrounding area. 
 
 
Chapter 9.66 of Article 4, Permit Procedures, establishes the Land Use Compliance Review 
(LUCR) process.  The LUCR process is used when an existing development is proposed for 
expansion.  Land Use Compliance Review applications are typically reviewed by the Director.  
The proposed project also includes a variance to encroach 17.5 feet into the recorded setback.  
While the LUCR process allows for Director approval, the variance request requires action by 
the Planning Commission.  Therefore, staff brought the project as a whole to the Planning 
Commission for their consideration. 
 
Section 9.66.010, A. through E. identify the standards that are and are not applicable to LUCR 
applications, as provided below. 

2

Packet Pg. 16



 
9.60.10 Applicability 

A. A Land Use Compliance review is required for proposed expansions of existing developed 

properties pursuant to Table 4.4: 

 

TABLE 4.4 

LAND USE COMPLIANCE 

EXPANSION THRESHOLDS 

SQUARE FOOTAGE OF 

EXISTING BUILDING 

MAXIMUM SQUARE 

FOOTAGE 

 

MAXIMUM PERCENTAGE 

up to 5,000 1250 sq ft 50% 

   

5,001 – 10,000 2000 sq ft 50% 

   

10,001 + 2500 sq ft 50% 

 

Proposed total expansions through Land Use Compliance Review applications shall not exceed 

the maximum square footage threshold or exceed the maximum percentage threshold identified 

in table 4.4. 

 

B. Expansions which exceed the thresholds specified in Table 4.4 shall follow the procedures 

in Chapter 9.63 Conditional Use Permit Review Criteria or Chapter 9.68 Site Plan and 

Design Review Permit as required by the specific Land Use District in which the property 

is located. 

 

C. Projects are reviewed and acted upon by the Director and notice is not required.  

 

D. Projects which fall within the thresholds of the Land Use Compliance Review shall comply 
with the following: 

 

1. Commercial Design Guidelines 

 

2. Outdoor Lighting regulations  

 

3. Parking and screening requirements 

 

4. Sign regulations 

 

5. Dedication of easements for drainage facilities, streets, trails, avigation easements as 

required by this code and any adopted plans. 

2

Packet Pg. 17



 

6. All other applicable Development Code regulations 

 

E. Projects which fall within the thresholds of the Land Use Compliance Review shall not be 
required the following: 

 

1. Half-width (½) street Improvements (curb, gutter, sidewalk, street lights, pavement) on 

all streets fronting the project  

 

2. Onsite water retention of incremental increase (addressed by applicant) 

 

3. Improvements to drainage facilities, except as defined by the parameters of the Council 

policies regarding drainage facilities 

 

4. Assessment Districts formation (including Landscape and Lighting, Street and Drainage 

and Public Safety) 

 

5. Utility Undergrounding, pursuant to adopted standards 

 

6. Additional Landscaping” 

 
As the Commission will note under Section 9.66.010, E., the following are not required.   
 
1. Half-width (½) street Improvements (curb, gutter, sidewalk, street lights, pavement) on 

all streets fronting the project  

 

2. Onsite water retention of incremental increase 

 

3. Improvements to drainage facilities, except as defined by the parameters of the Council 

policies regarding drainage facilities 

 

4. Assessment Districts formation (including Landscape and Lighting, Street and Drainage 

and Public Safety) 

 

5. Utility Undergrounding, pursuant to adopted standards 

 

6. Additional Landscaping” 

 
The provisions for variances as described in the Development Code are established to insure 
that any property, because of special circumstances, such as size, shape topography, location, 
or surroundings shall be accorded privileges commonly enjoyed by other properties in the same 

2

Packet Pg. 18



vicinity.   
 
Variances are reviewed by the Commission at a public hearing.  The Commission shall find that 
the following findings are true in order to approve a variance:  

1. Will the granting of the variance be materially detrimental to other land uses in the 
area, or interfere with the present or future ability to use solar energy systems?  
The granting of the variance will not be detrimental to other properties in the area.  The 
proposed variance is a result of a recorded setback for a proposed outer highway and 
for an Edison easement. The proposed outer highway has been abandoned and the 
applicant has received approval from Edison to encroach 17.5 feet into the setback.  The 
properties to the east are developed properties oriented closer to 29 Palms Hwy.  The 
properties to the west are existing developed properties. The variance will not interfere 
with the present or future ability to use solar energy systems. 

 
2. Are there exceptional or extraordinary circumstances or conditions applicable to the 

property or to an intended use that do not apply to other properties in the same district 
or vicinity?  
There is a 68 foot setback recorded on the property for a proposed outer highway and 
for an Edison easement.  The proposed outer highway has been abandoned and the 
applicant has received approval from Edison to encroach 17.5 feet in the recorded 
setback.   
 

3. Would the strict application of the land use district deprive such property of privileges 
enjoyed by other properties in the vicinity or in the same land use district?  
This property contains 68’ setback recorded on the tract map for a proposed outer 
highway and for an Edison easement.  The proposed outer highway has been 
abandoned and the applicant has obtained permission from Edison to encroach into the 
utility setback.   The properties to the east and to the south of the project are developed 
properties oriented closer to 29 Palms Hwy.  The property directly west of the project is 
a vacant lot, and the properties further west are existing developed properties.   
 

4. Is the granting of the variance compatible with the objectives, policies, general land uses 
and programs in the General Plan, the Development Code and any applicable plan or 
other ordinance?  
Yes, the variance is compatible with the following polices of the General Plan, Policy LU 

1-17 states “Encourage the renovation of existing commercial and industrial areas to 

improve appearance, environmental responsiveness use of infrastructure and 

functionality”,  

 
 
 
Alternatives:   
None recommended 

2

Packet Pg. 19



 
Fiscal Impact:   
N/A 
 

Attachments:  

Draft Conditions of Approval 
Standard Exhibts 
Land Use Compliance Review Application 
Variance Application 
Site Plan 
Elevations 
Edison Approval Letter 
Outer Highway Abandonment Document 
Tract Map 4220 
Chapter 9.66 LUCR 
Chapter 9.73 Variance 
Chapter 9.09 Commercial Districts 

2

Packet Pg. 20



LUCR 02-15 Social Security 
Planning Commission 11-10-2015 
 

Applicant Initials        
 

Page 1 of 12 

TOWN OF YUCCA VALLEY 
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 

LAND USE COMPLIANCE REVIEW, LUCR 02-15  
VARIANCE, V 02-15 

SOCIAL SECURITY ADMINISTRATION  
 

This approval is for Land Use Compliance Review, LUCR 02-15, a request for an addition of 554 
square feet to an existing 4,950 square foot Social Security Administration building and a 
Variance to encroach 17.5 feet into the recorded setback.  The project is located at 56492 29 
Palms Hwy, on the northwest corner of 29 Palms Hwy and Palm Avenue and is identified as 
APN: 595-022-09. 
 
 
 

 
 
 

2.a

Packet Pg. 21

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 D

ra
ft

 C
o

n
d

it
io

n
s 

o
f 

A
p

p
ro

va
l  

(1
18

5 
: 

S
o

ci
al

 S
ec

u
ri

ty
)



LUCR 02-15 Social Security 
Planning Commission 11-10-2015 
 

Applicant Initials        
 

Page 2 of 12 

 
 
 
GENERAL CONDITIONS 
 
G1. The applicant shall agree to defend, indemnify and hold harmless the Town of Yucca 

Valley, its agents, officers and employees, at his sole expense, against any action, claim 
or proceedings brought against the Town or its agents, officers or employees, to attack, 
set aside, void, or annul this approval or because of the issuance of such approval, or in 
the alternative, to relinquish such approval, in compliance with the Town of Yucca Valley 
Development Code.  The applicant shall reimburse the Town, its agents, officers, or 
employees for any court costs, and attorney's fees which the Town, its agents, officers 
or employees may be required by a court to pay as a result of such action.  The Town 
may, at its sole discretion, participate at its own expense in the defense of any such 
action but such participation shall not relieve applicant of his obligations under this 
condition.  The Town shall promptly notify the applicant of any claim, action or 
proceedings arising from the Town’s approval of this project, and the Town shall 
cooperate in the defense. 

 
G2. This Land Use Compliance Review shall become null and void if construction has not 

commenced within three (3) years of the Town of Yucca Valley date of approval.  
Extensions of time may be granted by the Planning Commission, in conformance with 

2.a

Packet Pg. 22

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 D

ra
ft

 C
o

n
d

it
io

n
s 

o
f 

A
p

p
ro

va
l  

(1
18

5 
: 

S
o

ci
al

 S
ec

u
ri

ty
)



LUCR 02-15 Social Security 
Planning Commission 11-10-2015 
 

Applicant Initials        
 

Page 3 of 12 

the Town of Yucca Valley Development Code.  The applicant is responsible for the 
initiation of an extension request. 

 
   Approval Date:   November 10, 2015 
   Expiration Date: November 10, 2018 
 
G3. The applicant shall ascertain and comply with requirements of all State, County, Town 

and local agencies as are applicable to the project.  These include, but are not limited to, 
County of San Bernardino Environmental Health Services, County of San Bernardino 
Transportation/Flood Control, County of San Bernardino Fire Department,  Yucca Valley 
Building and Safety, Caltrans, High Desert Water District, Airport Land Use Commission, 
California Regional Water Quality Control Board, Colorado River Region, the Federal 
Emergency Management Agency, MDAQMD-Mojave Desert Air Quality Management 
District, Community Development, Engineering, and all other Town Departments. 

 
G4. All conditions are continuing conditions.  Failure of the applicant to comply with any or 

all of said conditions at any time may result in the revocation of any construction 
permits for the project. 

 
G5. No on-site or off-site work shall commence without obtaining the appropriate permits 

for the work required by the Town and the appropriate utilities.  The approved permits 
shall be readily available on the job site for inspection by Town personnel. 

 
G6. The applicant shall pay all fees charged by the Town as required for application 

processing, plan checking, construction and/or inspections.  The fee amounts shall be 
those which are applicable and in effect at the time work is undertaken and 
accomplished.  Fees for entitlement prior to construction permits are based on 
estimated costs for similar projects.  Additional fees may be incurred, depending upon 
the specific project.  If additional fees for services are incurred, they must be paid prior 
to any further processing, consideration, or approval(s). 

 
G7. All improvements shall be inspected by the Town as appropriate.  Any work completed 

without proper inspection may be subject to removal and replacement under proper 
inspection. 

 
G8. All refuse shall be removed from the premises in conformance with Yucca Valley Town 

Code 33.083. 
 
G9. During construction, the applicant shall be responsible to sweep public paved roads 

adjacent to the project as necessary and as requested by the Town to eliminate any site 
related dirt and debris within the roadways. During business activities, the applicant 
shall keep the public right-of-way adjacent to the property in a clean and sanitary 
condition. 

2.a

Packet Pg. 23

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 D

ra
ft

 C
o

n
d

it
io

n
s 

o
f 

A
p

p
ro

va
l  

(1
18

5 
: 

S
o

ci
al

 S
ec

u
ri

ty
)



LUCR 02-15 Social Security 
Planning Commission 11-10-2015 
 

Applicant Initials        
 

Page 4 of 12 

 
G10. No staging of construction equipment or parking of worker’s vehicles shall be allowed 

within the public right-of-way of streets or other public improvements that have been 
accepted into the Town’s maintained system 

 
G11. All existing street and property monuments within or abutting this project site shall be 

preserved consistent with AB 1414.  If during construction of onsite or offsite 
improvements monuments are damaged or destroyed, the applicant shall retain a 
qualified licensed land surveyor or civil engineer to reset those monuments per Town 
Standards and file the necessary information with the County Recorder’s office as 
required by law (AB 1414). 

 
G12. Each phase of the project shall function independently of all other phases.  All 

improvements shall be completed for each phase to ensure that each phase functions 
separate from the remainder of the project, and shall include, but not be limited to, 
street improvements, drainage and retention/detention facilities, water delivery 
systems, fire suppressions systems, post construction erosion and sediment control 
systems, all utilities necessary to serve the project, and those improvements deemed 
necessary by the Town.  All phasing plans shall be illustrated on rough and precise 
grading plans, erosion and sediment control plans, all plan required for obtaining native 
plant plan approval, and on any other plan as deemed necessary by the Town. 

 
G13    At least one sign per street frontage shall be posted on the site and must contain the 

following information: the grading permit number, the project name, map number (if 
appropriate), the authorized dust controller phone number(s) and the Town phone 
number.   The signs must be obtained and installed by the developer using the sample 
format to be provided.  The signs must be present at the pre-construction meeting or 
the grading permit will not be issued.  The developer must keep the contact name and 
phone number active and current at all times.  Failure of the contact system may be 
considered grounds for revocation of the permit.   

 
G14. At the time of permit issuance the applicant shall be responsible for the payment of fees 

associated with electronic file storage of documents 
 
G15. The applicant shall reimburse the Town for the Town's costs incurred in monitoring the 

developer's compliance with the Conditions of Approval including, but not limited to, 
inspections and review of developer's operations and activities for compliance with all 
applicable dust and noise operations.  This condition of approval is supplemental and in 
addition to normal building permit and public improvement permits that may be 
required pursuant to the Yucca Valley Municipal Code.   

 

2.a

Packet Pg. 24

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 D

ra
ft

 C
o

n
d

it
io

n
s 

o
f 

A
p

p
ro

va
l  

(1
18

5 
: 

S
o

ci
al

 S
ec

u
ri

ty
)



LUCR 02-15 Social Security 
Planning Commission 11-10-2015 
 

Applicant Initials        
 

Page 5 of 12 

G16. Prior to the issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy for any habitable structure in each 
phase of the project, all improvements shall be constructed, final inspection performed, 
punch-list items completed, and all installations approved by the appropriate agency.  

 
G17. After final plan check by the Town, original mylars (4 mil) shall be submitted to the Town 

for signature by the Town Engineer. All original mylars submitted for Town Engineer’s 
signature must contain the design engineer’s wet signature and stamp and all other 
required signatures. 

 
G18. For any import or export of material, the applicant shall provide the following for review 

by the Town Engineer: the route of travel, number of trucks, daily schedule, and length 
of time required.  No hauling of material shall begin without the Town Engineer’s 
approval. 

 
G19. Prior to any work being performed within the public right-of-way, the applicant shall 

provide the name, address, telephone, facsimile number, and e-mail address of the 
Contractor to perform the work.  A description of the location, purpose, method of 
construction, and surface and subsurface area of the proposed work shall be supplied.  
A plat showing the proposed location and dimensions of the excavation and the facilities 
to be installed, maintained, or repaired in connection with the excavation, shall be 
provided and such other details as may be required by the Town Engineer.   

 
G20. The site shall be developed in accordance with the approved plans on file with the Town 

of Yucca Valley, in accordance with the Conditions of Approval approved for the project, 
and in accordance with the General Plan and Development Code.  Prior to any use of the 
project site or business activity being commenced thereon, all Conditions of Approval 
shall be completed to the satisfaction of the Town. 

 
G21.  Prior to issuances of building permits, all site plans, grading plans, landscape and 

irrigation plans, drainage/flood control plans, public improvement plans, erosion and 
sediment control plans, shall be coordinated for consistency with this approval. 

 
G22. The Town may allow phased construction of the project provided that the 

improvements necessary to adequately serve or mitigate the impacts of each phase of 
development are completed prior to the issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy for that 
phase. 

 
G23. The applicant or the applicant’s successor-in-interest shall be responsible for 

maintaining any undeveloped portion of the site in a manner that provides for the 
control of weeds, erosion and dust. 

 
G24. If archaeological, paleontological or historical resources are uncovered during 

excavation or construction activities at the project site, work in the affected area will 

2.a

Packet Pg. 25

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 D

ra
ft

 C
o

n
d

it
io

n
s 

o
f 

A
p

p
ro

va
l  

(1
18

5 
: 

S
o

ci
al

 S
ec

u
ri

ty
)



LUCR 02-15 Social Security 
Planning Commission 11-10-2015 
 

Applicant Initials        
 

Page 6 of 12 

cease immediately and a qualified person with appropriate expertise shall be consulted 
by the applicant regarding mitigation measures to preserve or record the find.  
Recommendations by the consultant shall be implemented as deemed necessary and 
feasible by the Town before work commences in the affected area.  If human remains 
are discovered, work in the affected area shall cease immediately and the County 
Coroner shall be notified.  If it is determined that the remains might be those of a Native 
American, the California Native American Heritage Commission shall be notified and 
appropriate measures provided by State law shall be implemented. 

 
G25. All street dedications shall be irrevocably offered to the public and shall continue in 

force until the Town accepts or abandons such offers.  All dedications shall be free of all 
encumbrances as approved by the Town Engineer. 

 
G26. The final conditions of approval issued by the approving authority shall be 

photographically or electronically placed on bond (blue/black line) paper and included in 
the Grading and Street Improvement plan sets on 24” x 36” bond (blue/ black line) 
paper and submitted with the plans for plan check.  These conditions of approval shall 
become part of these plan sets and the approved plans shall be available in the field and 
during construction.  Plan check fees shall not be charged for sheets containing the 
Conditions of Approval. 

 
G27. Prior to issuance of a certificate of occupancy, the applicant shall submit all 

improvement plans on compact disks in digital format acceptable to the Town Engineer. 
 
G28. Violations of any condition or restriction or prohibition set forth in these conditions, 

including all approved construction plans, public and private, for this project and subject 
to the Town’s overall project approval and these conditions of approval, shall subject 
the owner, applicant, developer or contractor(s) to the remedies as noted in the 
Municipal Code.  In addition, the Town Engineer  or Building Official may suspend all 
construction related activities for violation of any condition, restriction or prohibition 
set forth in these conditions until such time as it has been determined that all 
operations and activities are in conformance with these conditions. 

 
PLANNING CONDITIONS 
  
P1. The development of the property shall be in conformance with FEMA and the Town’s 

Floodplain Management Ordinance requirements. Adequate provision shall be made to 
intercept and conduct the existing tributary drainage flows around or through the site in 
a manner that will not adversely affect adjacent or downstream properties at the time 
the site is developed.  Protection shall be provided by constructing adequate drainage 
facilities, including, but not limited to modifying existing facilities or by securing a 
drainage easement. 

2.a

Packet Pg. 26

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 D

ra
ft

 C
o

n
d

it
io

n
s 

o
f 

A
p

p
ro

va
l  

(1
18

5 
: 

S
o

ci
al

 S
ec

u
ri

ty
)



LUCR 02-15 Social Security 
Planning Commission 11-10-2015 
 

Applicant Initials        
 

Page 7 of 12 

P2. Utility undergrounding shall be in accordance with Ordinance 233, or as amended by 
Town Council.  

 
P3. All exterior lighting shall comply with the Ordinance 90, Outdoor Lighting and shall be 

illustrated on all construction plans. 
 

P4. Parking and on-site circulation requirements shall be provided and maintained as 
follows.  Areas reserved for access drive and/or fire lanes shall be clearly designated.   

 
a) Any occupancy which requires additional parking that has not been provided for 

through this Land Use Compliance Review shall not be approved until a revision is 
submitted for review and approval showing the additional parking. 

 
b) All marking to include parking spaces, directional designation, no parking 

designation and fire lane designations shall be clearly defined and said marking 
shall be maintained in good condition at all times.  The Town Traffic Engineer shall 
approve all signage and markings for the circulation related signage. 

 
c) All paved parking stalls shall be clearly striped and permanently maintained with 

double or hairpin lines with the two lines being located an equal 9 inches on either 
side of the stall sidelines.  All regular parking stalls be a minimum 9’ x 19’. 

 

d) A minimum of twenty-two (22) paved parking spaces shall be provided, to include 
one van accessible ADA parking space.  

 
ENGINEERING CONDITIONS 
 
 

E1. Dedicate, or show there exists, sufficient right of way for a Highway – 6 Lanes Divided 
roadway along State Route 62.  Right of way requirements are for 67 foot half-width 
street section. 

E2. Prior to the issuance of a Grading Permit, a Grading Plan prepared by a recognized 
professional Civil Engineer shall be submitted, and the corresponding fees shall be paid 
to the Town prior to any grading activity. The rough and precise Grading Plans shall be 
reviewed and approved by the Town Engineer prior to issuance of grading permits. The 
applicant/owner is responsible for all fees incurred by the Town. Prior to Certificate of 
Occupancy, the Engineer-of-Record shall survey and certify that the site grading was 
completed in substantial conformance with the approved Grading Plans.  

 

2.a

Packet Pg. 27

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 D

ra
ft

 C
o

n
d

it
io

n
s 

o
f 

A
p

p
ro

va
l  

(1
18

5 
: 

S
o

ci
al

 S
ec

u
ri

ty
)



LUCR 02-15 Social Security 
Planning Commission 11-10-2015 
 

Applicant Initials        
 

Page 8 of 12 

E4. The rough grading shall be certified by a civil engineer that it was completed in 
substantial conformance with the approved rough Grading Plans.   Prior to the issuance 
of any building permits the project Engineer shall certify the finished lot was graded in 
conformance to approved plans. 

E5. A retention basin and/or underground storage system shall be constructed and 
functional prior to the issuance of certificate of occupancy for the any structure within 
the project.  The applicant shall provide on-site retention for the incrementally larger 
flows caused by development of the site, pursuant to a final drainage report, subject to 
review and approval by the Town Engineer.  The basin shall be sized and located such 
that it will not be located within the future right of way. 

E6. A final drainage report, prepared by a registered Civil Engineer, shall be prepared to 
determine the flows exiting the site under current undeveloped conditions compared to 
the incrementally larger flows due to the development of the site.  The retention basin 
size will be determined, per County of San Bernardino Flood Control methodology, such 
that incremental 100 year 24-hour storm volume, plus 10%, is retained on-site, or as 
otherwise determined by the Town Engineer. 

E7. In lieu of an engineered drainage report the retention basin and/or underground 
storage system shall be sized to retain 550 cubic feet of storm water for each 1,000 
square feet, and increments thereof, of impervious area proposed (structures, 
driveways, parking areas, etc.).   

E8. Basin(s) shall be designed to fully dissipate storm waters within a 48 hour period. 

E9. A pre-filtration system shall be installed for all drain lines connected to any underground 
storage system to collect sediment and hydrocarbon material prior to discharge into the 
underground system. 

E10 Any grading or drainage onto private off-site or adjacent property shall require a written 
permission to grade and/or a permission to drain letter from the affected property 
owner.   

E11. In conjunction with precise grading certification, all drainage systems, both public and 
private, shall be certified by a civil engineer that they have been constructed in 
substantial conformance with the approved plans, and shall be certified that they have 
the required capacity and will operate in accordance with the approved drainage 
reports for the project. 

E12. No on-site or off-site work shall commence without obtaining the appropriate permits 
for the work involved from the Town.  The approved permits shall be readily available 
on the job-site for inspection by the Town personnel. 

E13. All grading activities shall minimize dust through compliance with MDAQMD Rules 402 
and 403. 

2.a

Packet Pg. 28

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 D

ra
ft

 C
o

n
d

it
io

n
s 

o
f 

A
p

p
ro

va
l  

(1
18

5 
: 

S
o

ci
al

 S
ec

u
ri

ty
)



LUCR 02-15 Social Security 
Planning Commission 11-10-2015 
 

Applicant Initials        
 

Page 9 of 12 

E14. Prior to issuance of a grading permit, a Fugitive Dust and Erosion and Sediment Control 
Plan shall be submitted and approved by the Town Engineer.  The Fugitive Dust and 
Erosion and Sediment Control Plan shall illustrate all proposed phasing for construction 
of the project. 

E15. Prior to any work being performed in the public right-of-way, fees shall be paid and an 
encroachment permit shall be obtained from the Town.  The Applicant shall apply for an 
encroachment permit from the Town for utility trenching, utility connection, or any 
other encroachment onto public right-of-way. The Applicant shall be responsible for the 
associated costs and arrangements with each public utility.   

E16.  The Applicant shall restore any pavement cuts required for installation or extension of 
utilities for his project within the public right-of-way. In all cases where cuts are allowed, 
the Applicant is required to patch the cuts to Town standards and the approval of the 
Town Engineer.  The patching shall include a grinding of the pavement to a width 4 feet 
beyond the edge of the trench on each side, or as determined by the Town Engineer, 
and replacement with a full-depth asphalt concrete recommended by the Soils Engineer.   

E17. The Applicant shall accept and properly dispose of all off-site drainage flowing onto or 
through the site. 

E18. The Applicant shall construct the replacement of any identified damaged curb and 
gutter, sidewalk, drive approach, asphalt concrete pavement, meter boxes, and other 
infrastructure on Kickapoo Trail that may be required by the Town Engineer.  

E19.  The Applicant shall install all water and sewer systems required to serve the project.  All 
water and sewer systems shall be completed to the requirements of the Hi Desert 
Water District. 

E20. The Applicant shall observe the construction of this project to make certain that no 
damage or potential for damage occurs to adjacent roadway, existing improvements, 
adjacent property and other infrastructure.  The applicant shall be responsible for the 
repair of any damage occurring to offsite infrastructure and/or property damage as 
determined by the Town Engineer.  The applicant shall repair any such damage prior to 
certificate of occupancy. If the damage is such that it is not repairable within a 
reasonable amount of time as determined by the Town Engineer, the applicant may 
petition the Town Engineer for additional conditions that may allow him the time, 
amount of surety and other requirements to repair the damage. 

E21. The Applicant shall be responsible for all improvements constructed within the public 
right-of-way as required by the conditions of approval.  The improvements shall be 
constructed to the standards and requirements as determined and approved by the 
Town Engineer.  Any improvements not considered to be to the required standards shall 
be replaced by the Applicant.  The Applicant shall be required to maintain and repair 
those improvements prior to and after acceptance by the Town Council for the length of 
time required by the applicable conditions, standards and ordinances. 

E22. All improvement plans shall be designed by a Registered Civil Engineer.   

2.a

Packet Pg. 29

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 D

ra
ft

 C
o

n
d

it
io

n
s 

o
f 

A
p

p
ro

va
l  

(1
18

5 
: 

S
o

ci
al

 S
ec

u
ri

ty
)



LUCR 02-15 Social Security 
Planning Commission 11-10-2015 
 

Applicant Initials        
 

Page 10 of 12 

E23. Any area which remains undeveloped for a period of more than 30 days shall be 
stabilized using either chemical stabilizers or a desert wildflower mix hydroseed on the 
affected portion of the site. 

E24 Prior to the issuance of any grading permit to disturb, expose or stockpile an aggregate 
of more than one acre of land, an erosion and sediment control plan for the project shall 
be submitted to and approved by the Town Engineer.  

 
E25.   The Applicant shall be responsible for inspection, modification, and proper maintenance 

of the erosion control devices as necessary.   If the Applicant fails or refuses to properly 
maintain the erosion control devices, the Town official may cause emergency 
maintenance work to be done in order to protect potentially impacted property.  

 
E26. If construction of erosion control systems outside of the project boundaries is 

necessary, permission to construct such systems from the owner of such off-site 
property is required. Plans for the off-site system shall be included with the on-site 
plans submitted to the Town Engineer. The plans for the off-site erosion control system 
shall include permission to grade and maintain the erosion control system from all 
affected property owners and letters of clearance and/or permits from all appropriate 
governmental entities. 

 

E27. The Applicant shall submit a post construction erosion and sediment control plan which 
identifies and illustrates all necessary improvements to prevent the movement and or 
loss of any soil and sediment materials from the project site, including all individual lots 
for construction of habitable structures, all slope banks, and all areas of the site capable 
of resulting in the deposit of soils and sediments with the street or storm drain system.  
The post construction erosion and sediment improvements shall be certified by a civil 
engineer that they were constructed in substantial conformance with the approved 
plans and specifications, if required. 

 

E28. The septic system shall be maintained so as not to create a public nuisance and shall be 
serviced by a DEHS permitted pumper.  Soil testing for the subsurface disposal system 
shall meet the requirements of the Department of Environmental Health Services.   

 
E29. It is understood that the plans correctly shows all existing easements, traveled ways and 

drainage courses, and that their omission may require the Land Use Compliance Review 
plans to be resubmitted for further consideration. 

 
E30. The following shall information regarding the presence of the Marine Corps Air Ground 

Combat Center (MGAGCC) shall be recorded on the title of each property contained 
within the boundaries of the Land Use Compliance Review.   

 

2.a

Packet Pg. 30

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 D

ra
ft

 C
o

n
d

it
io

n
s 

o
f 

A
p

p
ro

va
l  

(1
18

5 
: 

S
o

ci
al

 S
ec

u
ri

ty
)



LUCR 02-15 Social Security 
Planning Commission 11-10-2015 
 

Applicant Initials        
 

Page 11 of 12 

“The Marine Corps Air Ground Combat Center is located in the Morongo Basin.  To 
prepare Marines for future conflicts, the MGAGCC carries out realistic training with 
military munitions, both day and night.  As a result, Military aircraft fly over the area, 
and military vehicles drive on and off the base every day.  This property is located 
directly under two aircraft flying routes and is located approximately 13 miles from the 
installation boundary.  Consequently, you should expect to hear military training, see 
low-flying military aircraft, and encounter other experiences associated with the 
important mission of the MCAGCC”. 
 

E31. After final plan check by the Town, original mylars (4 mil) shall be submitted to the Town 
for signature by the Town Engineer.  All original mylars submitted for the Town 
Engineer’s signature must contain the design engineer’s wet signature and stamp and all 
other required signatures. 

 
 
 
BUILDING AND SAFETY CONDITIONS 
 
B1. All Plans to comply with 2013 California Building Codes, 2013 Electrical Code, 2013 

Mechanical Code, 2013 Plumbing Code, 2013 Green Building and Energy Codes. 
  
B2. All Plans to be stamped and wet signed by California Licensed Engineer or Architect. 
 
B3.  Provide required ADA access plan.  Applicant to provide complying access from property 

line to all facilities; and entrances and exterior ground floor exits of all facilities.  
Accessible paths of travel shall be the most practical direct route feasible and may 
incorporate pedestrian ramps, curbs ramps, etc... All paths of travel shall comply unless 
there is an approved exception. Section CBC 11B-206.2 

 
B4. Obtain San Bernardino Environmental Health approval for on-site septic/Treatment 

system and Interceptor. 
 
B5. Obtain San Bernardino County Fire approval for tenant improvements. 
 
B6. Submit 3 complete sets of plans and provide 1 electronic copy of all plans and all 

calculations at the time of plan review submittal 
 
 
Fire Conditions 
 
F1. Prior to any construction occurring on any parcel, the applicant shall contact the Fire 

Department for verification of current fire protection requirements.   All new 

2.a

Packet Pg. 31

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 D

ra
ft

 C
o

n
d

it
io

n
s 

o
f 

A
p

p
ro

va
l  

(1
18

5 
: 

S
o

ci
al

 S
ec

u
ri

ty
)



LUCR 02-15 Social Security 
Planning Commission 11-10-2015 
 

Applicant Initials        
 

Page 12 of 12 

construction shall comply with the current Uniform Fire Code requirements and all 
applicable statutes, codes, ordinances and standards of the Fire Department. 

 
F2. Prior to any land disturbance, the water systems shall be designed to meet the required 

fire flow for this development and shall be approved by the Fire Department.   
 
F3. The Applicant shall be responsible for all fees required by San Bernardino County Fire 

Department. 
 
F4. The Development shall have a minimum of two points of vehicular access.   These are 

for fire/emergency equipment access and evacuation routes. 
 
F5. All buildings shall have access provided by approved roads, alleys and private drives with 

a minimum twenty six (26) foot unobstructed width and vertically to fourteen (14) feet 
six (6) inches in height.   Other recognized standards may be more restrictive by 
requiring wider access provisions. 

 
F6. Not less than 2 complete sets of Building Plans shall be submitted to the Fire 

Department for review and approval. 
 
F7. The applicant shall provide the Fire Department with a letter from the serving water 

company, certifying that the required water improvements have been made or that the 
existing fire hydrants and water system will meet distance and fire flow requirements.   
Fire flow water supply shall be in place prior to placing combustible materials on the 
job-site. 

 
 
 
Mojave Desert Air Quality Management District Condition 
 
M1. A “Notification of Demolition/Renovation” application must be completed and 

submitted to the District pursuant to Health and Safety Code Section 19827.5 for the 
demolition of any load bearing wall or foundation. 

 
I HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THE APPROVED CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL WILL BE SATISFIED PRIOR 
TO OR AT THE TIMEFRAMES SPECIFIED AS SHOWN ABOVE.  I UNDERSTAND THAT FAILURE TO 
SATISFY ANY ONE OF THESE CONDITIONS WILL PROHIBIT THE ISSUANCE OF ANY PERMIT OR 
ANY FINAL MAP APPROVAL. 

 
 
Applicant’s Signature                                                                      Date   

 

2.a

Packet Pg. 32

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 D

ra
ft

 C
o

n
d

it
io

n
s 

o
f 

A
p

p
ro

va
l  

(1
18

5 
: 

S
o

ci
al

 S
ec

u
ri

ty
)



   
TOWN OF YUCCA VALLEY 

 
PROJECT NO.: LAND USE COMPLIANCE REVIEW, LUCR 02-15 SOCIAL SECURITY 
 
       

 
 

           
   

 
 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ASSESSORS PARCEL MAP 

PIQ 

2.b

Packet Pg. 33

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ta
n

d
ar

d
 E

xh
ib

ts
  (

11
85

 :
 S

o
ci

al
 S

ec
u

ri
ty

)



 
 

 TOWN OF YUCCA VALLEY  

 
PROJECT NO.: LAND USE COMPLIANCE REVIEW, LUCR 02-15 SOCIAL SECURITY  
 
 
           
              

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

AERIAL PHOTO 

PIQ 

2.b

Packet Pg. 34

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ta
n

d
ar

d
 E

xh
ib

ts
  (

11
85

 :
 S

o
ci

al
 S

ec
u

ri
ty

)



 
  

TOWN OF YUCCA VALLEY  

 
PROJECT NO.: LAND USE COMPLIANCE REVIEW, LUCR 02-15 SOCIAL SECURITY  
 
 
         
              

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 

ZONING MAP 

PIQ 

2.b

Packet Pg. 35

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ta
n

d
ar

d
 E

xh
ib

ts
  (

11
85

 :
 S

o
ci

al
 S

ec
u

ri
ty

)



 

TOWN OF YUCCA VALLEY  

 
PROJECT NO.: LAND USE COMPLIANCE REVIEW, LUCR 02-15 SOCIAL SECURITY  
 
 
           
              

 
 

 

 
 
 
 

 
 

GENERAL PLAN LAND USE 

PIQ 

2.b

Packet Pg. 36

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ta
n

d
ar

d
 E

xh
ib

ts
  (

11
85

 :
 S

o
ci

al
 S

ec
u

ri
ty

)



 
 
 

TOWN OF YUCCA VALLEY 
 

PROJECT NO.: LAND USE COMPLIANCE REVIEW, LUCR 02-15 SOCIAL SECURITY     
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 

ALQUIST PRIOLO YUCCA VALLEY SOUTH 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

ALQUIST PRIOLO MAP 

PIQ 

2.b

Packet Pg. 37

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ta
n

d
ar

d
 E

xh
ib

ts
  (

11
85

 :
 S

o
ci

al
 S

ec
u

ri
ty

)



 
 
 

TOWN OF YUCCA VALLEY 
 

PROJECT NO.: LAND USE COMPLIANCE REVIEW, LUCR 02-15 SOCIAL SECURITY      
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 

FEMA FLOOD MAP 8860 

PIQ 

2.b

Packet Pg. 38

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ta
n

d
ar

d
 E

xh
ib

ts
  (

11
85

 :
 S

o
ci

al
 S

ec
u

ri
ty

)



 
 

TOWN OF YUCCA VALLEY 

 
PROJECT NO.: LAND USE COMPLIANCE REVIEW, LUCR 02-15 SOCIAL SECURITY 

  
  

        
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
                                          

 
 
          

 MASTER PLAN OF DRAINAGE 

PIQ 

2.b

Packet Pg. 39

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ta
n

d
ar

d
 E

xh
ib

ts
  (

11
85

 :
 S

o
ci

al
 S

ec
u

ri
ty

)



 
 

TOWN OF YUCCA VALLEY 

 
PROJECT NO.: LAND USE COMPLIANCE REVIEW, LUCR 02-15 SOCIAL SECURITY 

 
 
 
 

   

  
  

        
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
            

 
 

BICYCLE FACILITIES 
 

PIQ 

2.b

Packet Pg. 40

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ta
n

d
ar

d
 E

xh
ib

ts
  (

11
85

 :
 S

o
ci

al
 S

ec
u

ri
ty

)



2.
c

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 4
1

Attachment: Land Use Compliance Review Application  (1185 : Social Security)



2.
c

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 4
2

Attachment: Land Use Compliance Review Application  (1185 : Social Security)



2.
c

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 4
3

Attachment: Land Use Compliance Review Application  (1185 : Social Security)



2.
c

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 4
4

Attachment: Land Use Compliance Review Application  (1185 : Social Security)



2.
c

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 4
5

Attachment: Land Use Compliance Review Application  (1185 : Social Security)



2.
c

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 4
6

Attachment: Land Use Compliance Review Application  (1185 : Social Security)



2.
c

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 4
7

Attachment: Land Use Compliance Review Application  (1185 : Social Security)



2.
d

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 4
8

Attachment: Variance Application  (1185 : Social Security)



2.
d

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 4
9

Attachment: Variance Application  (1185 : Social Security)



2.
d

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 5
0

Attachment: Variance Application  (1185 : Social Security)



2.
d

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 5
1

Attachment: Variance Application  (1185 : Social Security)



2.
d

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 5
2

Attachment: Variance Application  (1185 : Social Security)



2.
d

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 5
3

Attachment: Variance Application  (1185 : Social Security)



2.
e

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 5
4

Attachment: Site Plan  (1185 : Social Security)



2.f

Packet Pg. 55

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 E

le
va

ti
o

n
s 

 (
11

85
 :

 S
o

ci
al

 S
ec

u
ri

ty
)



Int_END.doc 
10/6/2015 

 
 
 
 
 
 
October 6, 2015 
Sixty First Place Architects 
7120 E. Indian School Road 
Suite L 
Scottsdale, Arizona 85251 
 
 
Attn: Greg Bandelin 
 
SUBJECT: INTENT TO ISSUE ENCROACHMENT 
 Location:  56492 29 Palms Hwy., Yucca Valley 
 Notification No: 203251537 
 
In reference to the above mentioned project, this letter is being provided to you to 
acknowledge that we are in fact granting permission to IOTA PARTNERS, LLC, an 
Oregon limited liability company, to encroach with a building extension into our 
overhead distribution easement. Please be advised that the Encroachment document is in 
the process of being created and will be sent to the property owner for execution. 
 
The document states, in part: 
 

 WHEREAS, IOTA PARTNERS, LLC, an Oregon limited liability company, 
is the owner (hereinafter referred to as “Owner”), of that certain real property as described 
in that certain Grant Deed recorded on September 21, 2006 as Instrument No. 2006-
0647562 of Official Records, in the Office of the County Recorder of San Bernardino 
County, State of California, described as follows: 

 
Lot 13 of Tract No. 4220, Yucca Acres No. 3, in the town of Yucca Valley, 

County of San Bernardino, State of California, as per map thereof Recorded in Book 58 of 
Maps, Pages 85 and 86, in the Office of the County Recorder of said County. Together with 
that portion of 29 Palms Outer Highway North vacated by Resolution of the Board of 
Supervisors San Bernardino County, California, adjoining said property on the South which 
would pass by Operation of Law by a conveyance of said property. A certified copy of said 
Resolution recorded December 4, 1974, in Book 8569, Page 702, Official Records. 

  
and WHEREAS, SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA EDISON COMPANY, a 

corporation, (hereinafter referred to as “Edison”), is the holder of an easement, for public 
utility purposes affecting said land, acquired under and by virtue of that certain “Right of 

2.g

Packet Pg. 56

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 E

d
is

o
n

 A
p

p
ro

va
l L

et
te

r 
 (

11
85

 :
 S

o
ci

al
 S

ec
u

ri
ty

)



Int_END.doc 
10/6/2015 

Way” from Jacob C. Hansen and Ragna Hansen, husband and wife, executed April 27, 
1945 and recorded May 8, 1945 as Instrument No. 102 in Book 1766, Page 335 of Official 
Records, in the Office of the County Recorder of San Bernardino, State of California; and 
WHEREAS, Owner will construct a building extension on said land which will encroach 
upon Edison’s easement area.  The location of said building extension is more particularly 
depicted on the Exhibit "A" attached hereto and by this reference made a part hereof. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and conditions 

herein contained, the parties hereto agree as follows: 
 
Edison agrees not to object to the encroachment of building extension within 

its easement area upon the express conditions, provided however that: (1) said building 
extension, shall remain, as depicted on Exhibit "A" attached hereto and by this reference 
made a part hereof, including but not limited to walls and foundations, shall not be nearer 
than 3 feet to any pole(s) and shall maintain a minimum clearance of 12 feet, measured 
vertically, and 6 feet, measured horizontally, to any wire or conductor of said Edison, now 
existing or subsequently installed, (2) that any installation of building extension that are a 
deviation from the facilities depicted on Exhibit "A" shall be a violation of this 
Encroachment  Agreement, (3) Owner, by acceptance of this instrument, agrees for 
themselves, their heirs and assigns to release, save harmless and indemnify Edison, its 
officers, agents and employees from and against, any loss of or damage to property, 
including Edison’s own property, injury, liability and/or expense, which Edison may 
sustain, incur or become liable for, resulting in any manner from the construction or 
presence within said easement area of any portion of such building extension or resulting 
from or arising out of the performance of any necessary maintenance on Edison’s facilities, 
and (4) Owner, in any instance, shall not erect or place at any future time any of its 
facilities so as to unreasonably interfere with the rights of Edison created by this 
Agreement.  

 
Owner further acknowledges and agrees that Edison may revoke this 

agreement to the extent of a change in any applicable law or restriction governing 
clearances between building extension and Edison’s facilities. 

 
This Encroachment Agreement should not be construed as a subordination of 

Edison’s rights, title and interest in and to its easement. 
 
OWNER does hereby accept the above and foregoing Encroachment 

Agreement upon and subject to all of the terms, covenants and conditions therein 
contained, and does hereby agree to comply with and perform each and all of said terms, 
covenants and conditions. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2.g

Packet Pg. 57

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 E

d
is

o
n

 A
p

p
ro

va
l L

et
te

r 
 (

11
85

 :
 S

o
ci

al
 S

ec
u

ri
ty

)



Int_END.doc 
10/6/2015 

 
 
 
 
Upon receipt of the encroachment executed by the owner, the Encroachment document 
will then be executed by our Manager of Valuations/Title and Real Estate Services and 
then sent to the County Recorder’s office for recordation. The original document will be 
scanned into our database and cross-referenced. 
 
 
If you have any questions, or require additional information, please contact me at 
626.302.4451. 
 
Regards, 
 
 
Jeff Clark, Technical Specialist II 
Title and Real Estate Services 
Real Properties Department 
Transmission & Distribution  

2.g

Packet Pg. 58

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 E

d
is

o
n

 A
p

p
ro

va
l L

et
te

r 
 (

11
85

 :
 S

o
ci

al
 S

ec
u

ri
ty

)



2.h

Packet Pg. 59

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 O

u
te

r 
H

ig
h

w
ay

 A
b

an
d

o
n

m
en

t 
D

o
cu

m
en

t 
 (

11
85

 :
 S

o
ci

al
 S

ec
u

ri
ty

)



2.h

Packet Pg. 60

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 O

u
te

r 
H

ig
h

w
ay

 A
b

an
d

o
n

m
en

t 
D

o
cu

m
en

t 
 (

11
85

 :
 S

o
ci

al
 S

ec
u

ri
ty

)



2.h

Packet Pg. 61

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 O

u
te

r 
H

ig
h

w
ay

 A
b

an
d

o
n

m
en

t 
D

o
cu

m
en

t 
 (

11
85

 :
 S

o
ci

al
 S

ec
u

ri
ty

)



2.i

P
acket P

g
. 62

Attachment: Tract Map 4220  (1185 : Social Security)



2.
j

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 6
3

Attachment: Chapter 9.66 LUCR  (1185 : Social Security)



2.
j

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 6
4

Attachment: Chapter 9.66 LUCR  (1185 : Social Security)



2.
j

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 6
5

Attachment: Chapter 9.66 LUCR  (1185 : Social Security)



2.
k

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 6
6

Attachment: Chapter 9.73 Variance  (1185 : Social Security)



2.
k

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 6
7

Attachment: Chapter 9.73 Variance  (1185 : Social Security)



2.l

Packet Pg. 68

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

h
ap

te
r 

9.
09

 C
o

m
m

er
ci

al
 D

is
tr

ic
ts

  (
11

85
 :

 S
o

ci
al

 S
ec

u
ri

ty
)



2.l

Packet Pg. 69

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

h
ap

te
r 

9.
09

 C
o

m
m

er
ci

al
 D

is
tr

ic
ts

  (
11

85
 :

 S
o

ci
al

 S
ec

u
ri

ty
)



2.l

Packet Pg. 70

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

h
ap

te
r 

9.
09

 C
o

m
m

er
ci

al
 D

is
tr

ic
ts

  (
11

85
 :

 S
o

ci
al

 S
ec

u
ri

ty
)



2.l

Packet Pg. 71

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

h
ap

te
r 

9.
09

 C
o

m
m

er
ci

al
 D

is
tr

ic
ts

  (
11

85
 :

 S
o

ci
al

 S
ec

u
ri

ty
)



2.l

Packet Pg. 72

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

h
ap

te
r 

9.
09

 C
o

m
m

er
ci

al
 D

is
tr

ic
ts

  (
11

85
 :

 S
o

ci
al

 S
ec

u
ri

ty
)



2.l

Packet Pg. 73

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

h
ap

te
r 

9.
09

 C
o

m
m

er
ci

al
 D

is
tr

ic
ts

  (
11

85
 :

 S
o

ci
al

 S
ec

u
ri

ty
)



2.l

Packet Pg. 74

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

h
ap

te
r 

9.
09

 C
o

m
m

er
ci

al
 D

is
tr

ic
ts

  (
11

85
 :

 S
o

ci
al

 S
ec

u
ri

ty
)



2.l

Packet Pg. 75

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

h
ap

te
r 

9.
09

 C
o

m
m

er
ci

al
 D

is
tr

ic
ts

  (
11

85
 :

 S
o

ci
al

 S
ec

u
ri

ty
)



2.l

Packet Pg. 76

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

h
ap

te
r 

9.
09

 C
o

m
m

er
ci

al
 D

is
tr

ic
ts

  (
11

85
 :

 S
o

ci
al

 S
ec

u
ri

ty
)



2.l

Packet Pg. 77

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

h
ap

te
r 

9.
09

 C
o

m
m

er
ci

al
 D

is
tr

ic
ts

  (
11

85
 :

 S
o

ci
al

 S
ec

u
ri

ty
)



2.l

Packet Pg. 78

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

h
ap

te
r 

9.
09

 C
o

m
m

er
ci

al
 D

is
tr

ic
ts

  (
11

85
 :

 S
o

ci
al

 S
ec

u
ri

ty
)



2.l

Packet Pg. 79

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

h
ap

te
r 

9.
09

 C
o

m
m

er
ci

al
 D

is
tr

ic
ts

  (
11

85
 :

 S
o

ci
al

 S
ec

u
ri

ty
)



2.l

Packet Pg. 80

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

h
ap

te
r 

9.
09

 C
o

m
m

er
ci

al
 D

is
tr

ic
ts

  (
11

85
 :

 S
o

ci
al

 S
ec

u
ri

ty
)



2.l

Packet Pg. 81

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

h
ap

te
r 

9.
09

 C
o

m
m

er
ci

al
 D

is
tr

ic
ts

  (
11

85
 :

 S
o

ci
al

 S
ec

u
ri

ty
)



2.l

Packet Pg. 82

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

h
ap

te
r 

9.
09

 C
o

m
m

er
ci

al
 D

is
tr

ic
ts

  (
11

85
 :

 S
o

ci
al

 S
ec

u
ri

ty
)



2.l

Packet Pg. 83

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

h
ap

te
r 

9.
09

 C
o

m
m

er
ci

al
 D

is
tr

ic
ts

  (
11

85
 :

 S
o

ci
al

 S
ec

u
ri

ty
)



Town of Yucca Valley 

PLANNING COMMISSION STAFF REPORT 

To: Honorable Chair and Planning Commissioners 

From: Alex Qishta, Project Engineer  

Shane Stueckle, Deputy Town Manager 

Date: November 2, 2015 

Meeting Date: November 10, 2015 

  

Subject: Five Year Capital Improvement Program 

 
Recommendation: 
That the Planning Commission: 

A. Finds that the project is exempt from CEQA in accordance with Section 15378(b) (4) 
and Section 15061 (b) (3) of the California Environmental Quality Act.  The Capital 
Improvement Program (CIP) is not a project nor is there possibility of a significant 
effect on the environment from the program.  Further the CIP does not result in a 
commitment to any specific project. 
 

B. Recommends that the Planning Commission recommends that Town Council 
approve and adopt the Five Year Capital Improvement Program for Fiscal Years 
2015/2016 through 2019/2020 

 

Prior Review: There has been no prior Commission review of this matter. 
 
Executive Summary: A Capital Improvement Program (CIP) is a planning tool for the 
expenditure of resources for public infrastructure.  A capital improvement program is a short-
range, five year plan, which identifies capital projects, provides a planning schedule, and 
identifies options for financing the program. 

 
The CIP document identifies the recommended allocation of the Town’s limited resources for 
capital projects for fiscal years 2015-2016 through 2019-2020. 
 
Order of Procedure: 

Request Staff Report  
 Request Public Comment  
 Council Discussion/Questions of Staff  
 Motion/Second 
 Discussion on Motion 
            Call the Question (Voice Vote) 

3

Packet Pg. 84



 
Discussion: The Capital Improvement Program is a guide for the allocation of resources for 
improving and maintaining public infrastructure and facilities.  Programming capital facilities 
and improvements over time promotes better use of the Town’s limited financial resources, 
reduces on-going maintenance costs, and assists in the coordination of public and private 
development. 
 
The CIP is primarily a planning document to assist the Town’s long-term infrastructure planning.  
As such, the projects and their scopes contained in the CIP are subject to change from year to 
year as the needs of the community become more defined and projects move closer to final 
implementation.  While the CIP is a planning tool, the annual capital projects budget (Special 
Revenue Funds) as approved by the Town Council appropriates funds for the specific projects 
and authorizes staff to proceed with project implementation. 
 
General Plan Consistency:  The Planning Commission must find that the CIP is consistent with 
the policies outlined within the General Plan.  The following goals, policies, and programs 
provide General Plan guidance supporting implementation of the CIP. 
 
Land Use Element, Public/Quasi Public Policy LU 1-24 
Plan for the adequate and logical expansion of public facilities that are compatible with 
surrounding land uses, reflect community character, are educationally enriching, and meet a 
broad range of local needs. 
 
Land Use Element, General Policy LU 2-4: 
Encourage the inclusion of pedestrian linkages and public amenities to promote walking on site 
and within clustered development 
 
Land Use Element, East Side SPA Policy LU 2-9: 
Coordinate with the Hi Desert Water District to facilitate development of a new wastewater 
treatment plant in the area. 
 
Housing Element, Policy H2-1:  
Revitalize the core of the community with new housing that capitalizes on existing and planned 
public facilities.  
  
Circulation Element, Policy C 1-6.  
Protect rights-of-way for SR-62 and SR-247, major arterials, collectors, residential streets, and 
for all other planned infrastructure. 
 
Circulation Element, Policy C 1-8  
Apply complete street strategies that accommodate pedestrian, bicycle and transit modes 
whenever practicle and feasible.   
 
Circulation Element, Policy C 1-16  

3

Packet Pg. 85



Support and work with Caltrans to coordinate signals along SR-62 and SR-247 in Town. 
 
Circulation Element, Policy C 1-17 
Ensure funding is available to implement and maintain signal coordination. 
 
Circulation Element, Policy C 2-1 
Work with utility providers in the planning, designing, and siting of distribution and support 
facilities to comply with the standards of the General Plan and Development Code. 
 
Safety Element, Policy S 3-4 
Collaborate with the San Bernardino County Flood Control District and other state and federal 
agencies to minimize flood damage. 
 

Safety Element, Policy S 4-3 
Ensure that public and private water distribution and supply facilities have adequate capacity 
and reliability (peakload water supply) to supply both everyday and emergency firefighting 
needs. 
 
Noise Element, Policy N 1-4 
Encourage the use of alternative transportation such as busing, bicycling, and walking to reduce 
peak traffic volumes and therefore transportation-related sources of noise. 
 

Noise Element, Policy N 1-5 
Encourage traffic-calming road construction and design and engineering methods, where 
appropriate, to decrease excessive motor vehicle noise. 
 

The projects included in the 5-Year CIP implement the General Plan goals, policies and 
programs, by delivering infrastructure in the areas of traffic and pedestrian safety, affordable 
housing units, park and recreation facilities, and flood control improvements.  The Town is able 
to deliver these projects due to aggressively seeking grant and other outside funds, and the 
Town must continue to seek out other funding sources.  As illustrated in the CIP document, the 
Town’s annual capital facility revenues are extremely limited, and without additional resources, 
the Town will not be able to deliver infrastructure construction and maintenance that is 
necessary, as well as desired by community residents. 
 
Major Capital Projects Moving Forward:  There are a number of major capital projects 
underway in fiscal years 2014/2015 and 2015/2016.  These projects are financially feasible due 
to non-Town resources being made available from County, state and federal funds.  A number 
of these projects have also benefitted from the Town Council’s recent approval of Development 
Impact Fee increases.  The following information outlines some of those major infrastructure 
initiatives.   
 
This information includes projects that are underway by other agencies as well as private 
development projects which are constructing public infrastructure. 

3

Packet Pg. 86



 
SR62: SR247 to Warren Vista Avenue Improvements:  This project includes the future widening 
of SR62 from SR247 to Warren Vista Avenue from 4 lanes to 6 lanes. This is a right-of-way study 
only to determine the project needs and environmental issues that could face the project. 
 
Traffic Signal Synchronization (Phase II):  This project includes the synchronization of all traffic 
signals on SR 62, from Church Avenue to La Contenta Road.  This program is funded through 
grant funds from San Bernardino Associated Governments. 
 
Park and Ride Slurry Seal Project: this project includes the removal of the parking lot striping, 
type II Slurry seal application and re-striping of the parking lot. 
 
Old Animal Shelter Demolitions: This project will include the demolition of the old Animal 
Shelter Building. 
 
Town Property Phase I Sewer Connection: This project includes tying Town Property to the 
sewer collection system.  

Paradise Park Site Improvements:  This project includes the construction of two new basketball 
courts and demolition of the existing court, construction of a Pikelball court, walking pathway 
around Park perimeter, various park benches/seating areas, shade cover construction by the 
playground area, and low level light along walking path.  The Town anticipates the construction 
of this project to be completely funded through state and CDBG funds. 

Pima Trail Improvements:  This project includes paving, sidewalk, curb and gutter of the missing 
link of Pima Trail, approximately 500 feet east of Church Street to Palm Avenue.  This project 
was generated as a result of the Public Lands Highways Discretionary Funds Project (PLHD) to 
provide access to business and residents. 

Alley Way Improvements: This project includes paving of alley way between Palm Avenue and 
Grand Avenue.  This project was generated as a result of the Public Lands Highways 
Discretionary Funds Project (PLHD) to provide access to business and residents. 
 
Other Capital Facility Projects Underway: 
 
Hi Desert Water District, Wastewater Collection and Treatment System:  The Hi Desert Water 
District has contracted the preparation of PS&E for the wastewater collection system.  The 
design is approximately 95% complete, and the PS&E is scheduled for completion in late 2014.  
The California Regional Water Quality Control Board has mandated the completion of Phase I of 
the collection and treatment system by 2016. 
 
Recently Complete Projects: 
 
SR 62 @ Dumosa Avenue Traffic Signal:  In conjunction with the development of the Yucca 

3

Packet Pg. 87



Valley Senior Affordable Housing Project discussed below, the construction of a traffic signal at 
SR 62 and Dumosa Avenue will provide significant traffic and pedestrian safety improvements 
for access to the Yucca Valley Community Center complex as well as the surrounding 
commercial and residential development.  This project will also result in the elimination of a 
traffic cut-through route impacting the residential neighborhood on Antelope Trail, and through 
reduced traffic volumes, increase safety for the residents who live on Antelope Trail.  The Town 
anticipates the construction of this project to be completely funded through the Measure I 
Major Local Highways Program. 

Jacob’s Park Improvements: This project includes the replacement of the existing playground 
equipment, as well as replacing the existing sand with wood chips for ADA access.  The 
playground equipment is designed for both the 2 to 5 and 5 to 12 year old age groups 
 
Safe Routes to School, Onaga Trail to SR 62:   This project includes the construction of sidewalks 
serving the Yucca Valley High School, on Sage Avenue, between Onaga Trail and SR 62.  This 
project, funded through grant funds, will deliver pedestrian safety improvements serving local 
residents and Yucca Valley High School. 
 
Public Lands Highways Discretionary Funds Project:  This project includes the construction of 
curb, gutter, sidewalks, and raised median islands on SR 62 between Apache to east of Palm 
Avenue.  The project includes the construction of a traffic signal at SR 62 and Church Street.  
This approximately $2.9 million project is funded through a combination of Federal SAFETEA LU, 
State SLPP, and local Measure I revenues of approximately $723,000. The project will deliver 
significant traffic and pedestrian safety improvements. 
 
Traffic Signal Synchronization (Phase I):  This project includes the synchronization of traffic 
signals on SR 62, including Camino Del Cielo, Kickapoo, Pioneertown Road Inca, Church Avenue 
and Acoma.  This program is funded through grant funds from San Bernardino Associated 
Governments. 
 
Black Rock Canyon Road Improvements: the project includes the pavement of Black Rock 
Canyon Road located in the southeast section of the Town.  This road provides access to a small 
residential neighborhood, Joshua Tree National’s Park Black Rock Campground and the Town’s 
South Park. The project was funded by Local Transportation Fund. 

Community Center Infields Refurbishment Project: The project includes the refurbishment of a 
standard size softball infield. The Community Center infield is approximately 8,000 square feet 
in size.  In summary, this project brings new clay infield materials onto the softball field, which 
are necessary for safe and quality field surfaces.  The warning tracks will not receive new clay 
material. 
 
2015/2016 Town Wide Slurry Seal Project: The Project provided slurry and cape seal for streets 
throughout the Town, and appurtenant work as necessary.  All work required for the project 
has been satisfactory completed.  Approximately Thirteen lanes miles of road maintenance 

3

Packet Pg. 88



were completed with this project. 
 
The following information provides an overview of the Town’s annual and historical capital 
revenues. 
 
Measure I Revenues:  Measure I revenues are generated by a ½ cent sales tax approved by the 
voters in 1989 and reauthorized by the voters in 2004.  Measure I expenditures may only be 
expended for roadway purposes.  The new Measure as reauthorized in 2004 became effective 
on April 1, 2010.  With the new Measure, the Town’s annual Measure I revenues were reduced 
by more than 25% with the creation of  the mandatory Major Local Highways Program (MLHP) 
fund that is retained by San Bernardino Associated Governments (SANBAG).  The process for 
allocation of the Major Local Highways Program fund includes a recommendation from the City 
of Twentynine Palms, the County of San Bernardino, and the Town to the Mountain Desert 
Committee and then to the full SANBAG Board.   
 
The following figure identifies the trends in Measure I revenues between FY 2006/2007 and the 
estimated revenues through FY 2019/2020. 
 
 

 
 
 
 
Local Transportation Fund (LTF): to the local jurisdiction.  Expenditures of LTF funds are limited 
to roadway purposes in accordance with the State Gas Tax Guidelines.    
 
LTF revenues have historically been used for both roadway capital projects as well as for backfill 
to the Town’s Gas Tax funded street maintenance program.  The following figure illustrates 
historical LTF revenues and the revenue estimated for FY 2015/2016 to 2019/2020.  The 

3

Packet Pg. 89



significant reduction in LTF revenues is a direct result of increased transit services within the 
Town, provided by Morongo Basin Transit Authority (MBTA). 
 

 
 
 
 
Community Development Block Grants (CDBG):  CDBG funds have historically been allocated 
to the construction of recreation based facilities for both the Town as well as for non-profit 
agencies, as well as economic development infrastructure programs and Code Compliance 
programs.  Revenues available for capital projects have historically ranged in the $90,000 to 
$100,000 annually.  The Town Council’s recent actions allocated 2015-16 of CDBG revenues to 
the replacement of the playground equipment at Jacobs Park. 
 
State Local Partnership Program (SLPP): The Measure I 2010-2040 Expenditure Plan and the 
Mountain/Desert Subarea transportation planning partners identifies projects eligible for 
partial funding from Measure I 2010-2040 Rural Mountain/Desert Subarea Major Local Highway 
Program ”MLHP” funds and Proposition 1B State Local Partnership Program “SLPP” formula 
Funds. 
 
The following capital project revenues are not consistent and are dependent upon varying 
factors.   
 
Development Impact Fees:  Development Impact Fee revenues as approved by the Town 
Council include five categories of capital projects.  These five categories include traffic, parks, 

3

Packet Pg. 90



storm drains, general facilities, and trails.  The following impact fee funds have been allocated 
to Capital Projects: 

o Park Impact Fees - No allocation 

o Storm Drain Impact Fees - allocated to Senior Housing Project to construct 
regional storm drain facilities within Dumosa Avenue; 

o General Facilities Impact Fees - No allocation 
 
Quimby Fees:  Quimby Fee revenues are generated from the Town’s Parkland Dedication 
Ordinance and the payment of parkland dedication fees that off-set the impacts of new 
residential development on the Town’s park and recreation facilities.  
 
Redevelopment Agency Capital Projects:  With the dissolution of Redevelopment by the State 
there is no allocation of RDA funds at this time.  Pending resolution of state mandated process, 
there are anticipated amendments to the CIP during FY 2015/1016 that will identify the 
allocation of remaining former RDA bond proceeds. 
 
The following outlines the major one-time grant funds contained in the 5-Year CIP. 
 
Congestion Mitigation & Air Quality (CMAQ):  The Town’s grant application for CMAQ funding 
for traffic signal synchronization was successful.   The approved project includes the 
interconnection of the traffic signals on SR 62 at Acoma to La Contenta Road traffic signals. 
 
SANBAG Transit Access Improvement Program - The Town was successful in securing matching 
funds from SANBAG for the construction of pedestrian access improvements around Town Hall 
between transit stops and Community Center destinations; 
 
Potential Modifications to CIP:  The Town has extremely limited resources available for capital 
expenditures.  Therefore while the Town has extensive needs for road, park, trail and other 
infrastructure improvements, the Town does not have sufficient revenues to address those 
needs.   
  
Alternatives: Staff recommends no alternative actions.  The Planning Commission reviews the 5 
year CIP is mandated by State law. 
 
Fiscal Impact: The CIP outlines the planned expenditures over the next five fiscal years.  The 
Following is an overview of this information that will be presented at the Planning Commission 
meeting. 
 

3

Packet Pg. 91



Fund balance as of 

6/30/15
FY2015/16 FY2016/17 FY2017/18 FY2018/19 FY2019/20

Fund 522-Measure I-Major Arterial 574,331                       -                     

Carryover Balance from Prior year 574,331            480,090            480,090            -                     -                     

Estimated Revenue -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     

Planned Expenditures 94,241               -                     480,090            -                     -                     

480,090            480,090            -                     -                     -                     

Fund 523 Measure I Local Roads 70,989                         

Carryover Balance from Prior year 70,989               70,989               -                     -                     -                     

Estimated Revenue -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     

Planned Expenditures -                     70,989               -                     -                     -                     

70,989               -                     -                     -                     -                     

Fund 524 Measure I Unrestricted 877,764                       

Carryover Balance from Prior year 877,764            939,101            1,139,424         1,528,140         823,631            

Estimated Revenue 688,162            708,806            731,843            757,457            787,755            

Planned Expenditures 626,825            508,483            343,127            1,461,966         1,254,566         

939,101            1,139,424         1,528,140         823,631            356,820            

Fund 507 Traffic Safety 149,000                       

Carryover Balance from Prior year 149,000            156,953            206,953            256,953            306,953            

Estimated Revenue 50,000               50,000               50,000               50,000               50,000               

Planned Expenditures 42,047               -                     -                     -                     -                     

156,953            206,953            256,953            306,953            356,953            

Fund 516 LTF 476,000                       

Carryover Balance from Prior year 476,000            12,000               38,000               64,000               90,000               

Estimated Revenue 26,000               26,000               26,000               26,000               26,000               

Planned Expenditures 490,000            -                     -                     -                     -                     

12,000               38,000               64,000               90,000               116,000            

Fund 800 Capital Projects Reserve 585,000                       

Carryover Balance from Prior year 585,000            943,000            643,000            643,000            193,000            

Estimated Revenue 1,025,000         -                     -                     -                     -                     

Planned Expenditures 667,000            300,000            -                     450,000            -                     

943,000            643,000            643,000            193,000            193,000            

Fund 350 Development Impact Fee 1,221,000                   

Carryover Balance from Prior year 1,221,000         1,121,000         1,021,000         821,000            96,000               

Estimated Revenue -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     

Planned Expenditures 100,000            100,000            200,000            725,000            75,000               

1,121,000         1,021,000         821,000            96,000               21,000               

Planned Expenditures (2,020,113)       (979,472)           (1,023,217)       (2,636,966)       (1,329,566)       

 
 

Attachments:  

5 Year Capital Improvement Program 

3

Packet Pg. 92



3.
a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 9
3

Attachment: 5 Year Capital Improvement Program  (1204 : Five Year Capital Improvement Program)



3.
a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 9
4

Attachment: 5 Year Capital Improvement Program  (1204 : Five Year Capital Improvement Program)



3.
a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 9
5

Attachment: 5 Year Capital Improvement Program  (1204 : Five Year Capital Improvement Program)



3.
a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 9
6

Attachment: 5 Year Capital Improvement Program  (1204 : Five Year Capital Improvement Program)



3.
a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 9
7

Attachment: 5 Year Capital Improvement Program  (1204 : Five Year Capital Improvement Program)



3.
a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 9
8

Attachment: 5 Year Capital Improvement Program  (1204 : Five Year Capital Improvement Program)



3.
a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 9
9

Attachment: 5 Year Capital Improvement Program  (1204 : Five Year Capital Improvement Program)



3.
a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 1
00

Attachment: 5 Year Capital Improvement Program  (1204 : Five Year Capital Improvement Program)



3.
a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 1
01

Attachment: 5 Year Capital Improvement Program  (1204 : Five Year Capital Improvement Program)



3.
a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 1
02

Attachment: 5 Year Capital Improvement Program  (1204 : Five Year Capital Improvement Program)



3.
a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 1
03

Attachment: 5 Year Capital Improvement Program  (1204 : Five Year Capital Improvement Program)



3.
a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 1
04

Attachment: 5 Year Capital Improvement Program  (1204 : Five Year Capital Improvement Program)



3.
a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 1
05

Attachment: 5 Year Capital Improvement Program  (1204 : Five Year Capital Improvement Program)



3.
a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 1
06

Attachment: 5 Year Capital Improvement Program  (1204 : Five Year Capital Improvement Program)



3.
a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 1
07

Attachment: 5 Year Capital Improvement Program  (1204 : Five Year Capital Improvement Program)



3.
a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 1
08

Attachment: 5 Year Capital Improvement Program  (1204 : Five Year Capital Improvement Program)



3.
a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 1
09

Attachment: 5 Year Capital Improvement Program  (1204 : Five Year Capital Improvement Program)



3.
a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 1
10

Attachment: 5 Year Capital Improvement Program  (1204 : Five Year Capital Improvement Program)



3.
a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 1
11

Attachment: 5 Year Capital Improvement Program  (1204 : Five Year Capital Improvement Program)



3.
a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 1
12

Attachment: 5 Year Capital Improvement Program  (1204 : Five Year Capital Improvement Program)



3.
a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 1
13

Attachment: 5 Year Capital Improvement Program  (1204 : Five Year Capital Improvement Program)



3.
a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 1
14

Attachment: 5 Year Capital Improvement Program  (1204 : Five Year Capital Improvement Program)



3.
a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 1
15

Attachment: 5 Year Capital Improvement Program  (1204 : Five Year Capital Improvement Program)



3.
a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 1
16

Attachment: 5 Year Capital Improvement Program  (1204 : Five Year Capital Improvement Program)



3.
a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 1
17

Attachment: 5 Year Capital Improvement Program  (1204 : Five Year Capital Improvement Program)



3.
a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 1
18

Attachment: 5 Year Capital Improvement Program  (1204 : Five Year Capital Improvement Program)



3.
a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 1
19

Attachment: 5 Year Capital Improvement Program  (1204 : Five Year Capital Improvement Program)



3.
a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 1
20

Attachment: 5 Year Capital Improvement Program  (1204 : Five Year Capital Improvement Program)



3.
a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 1
21

Attachment: 5 Year Capital Improvement Program  (1204 : Five Year Capital Improvement Program)



3.
a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 1
22

Attachment: 5 Year Capital Improvement Program  (1204 : Five Year Capital Improvement Program)



3.
a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 1
23

Attachment: 5 Year Capital Improvement Program  (1204 : Five Year Capital Improvement Program)



3.
a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 1
24

Attachment: 5 Year Capital Improvement Program  (1204 : Five Year Capital Improvement Program)



3.
a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 1
25

Attachment: 5 Year Capital Improvement Program  (1204 : Five Year Capital Improvement Program)



3.
a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 1
26

Attachment: 5 Year Capital Improvement Program  (1204 : Five Year Capital Improvement Program)



3.
a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 1
27

Attachment: 5 Year Capital Improvement Program  (1204 : Five Year Capital Improvement Program)



3.
a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 1
28

Attachment: 5 Year Capital Improvement Program  (1204 : Five Year Capital Improvement Program)



3.
a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 1
29

Attachment: 5 Year Capital Improvement Program  (1204 : Five Year Capital Improvement Program)



3.
a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 1
30

Attachment: 5 Year Capital Improvement Program  (1204 : Five Year Capital Improvement Program)



3.
a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 1
31

Attachment: 5 Year Capital Improvement Program  (1204 : Five Year Capital Improvement Program)



3.
a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 1
32

Attachment: 5 Year Capital Improvement Program  (1204 : Five Year Capital Improvement Program)



3.
a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 1
33

Attachment: 5 Year Capital Improvement Program  (1204 : Five Year Capital Improvement Program)



3.
a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 1
34

Attachment: 5 Year Capital Improvement Program  (1204 : Five Year Capital Improvement Program)



3.
a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 1
35

Attachment: 5 Year Capital Improvement Program  (1204 : Five Year Capital Improvement Program)



3.
a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 1
36

Attachment: 5 Year Capital Improvement Program  (1204 : Five Year Capital Improvement Program)



3.
a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 1
37

Attachment: 5 Year Capital Improvement Program  (1204 : Five Year Capital Improvement Program)



3.
a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 1
38

Attachment: 5 Year Capital Improvement Program  (1204 : Five Year Capital Improvement Program)



3.
a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 1
39

Attachment: 5 Year Capital Improvement Program  (1204 : Five Year Capital Improvement Program)



3.
a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 1
40

Attachment: 5 Year Capital Improvement Program  (1204 : Five Year Capital Improvement Program)



3.
a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 1
41

Attachment: 5 Year Capital Improvement Program  (1204 : Five Year Capital Improvement Program)



3.
a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 1
42

Attachment: 5 Year Capital Improvement Program  (1204 : Five Year Capital Improvement Program)



3.
a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 1
43

Attachment: 5 Year Capital Improvement Program  (1204 : Five Year Capital Improvement Program)



3.
a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 1
44

Attachment: 5 Year Capital Improvement Program  (1204 : Five Year Capital Improvement Program)



3.
a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 1
45

Attachment: 5 Year Capital Improvement Program  (1204 : Five Year Capital Improvement Program)



3.
a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 1
46

Attachment: 5 Year Capital Improvement Program  (1204 : Five Year Capital Improvement Program)



3.
a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 1
47

Attachment: 5 Year Capital Improvement Program  (1204 : Five Year Capital Improvement Program)



3.
a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 1
48

Attachment: 5 Year Capital Improvement Program  (1204 : Five Year Capital Improvement Program)



3.
a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 1
49

Attachment: 5 Year Capital Improvement Program  (1204 : Five Year Capital Improvement Program)



3.
a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 1
50

Attachment: 5 Year Capital Improvement Program  (1204 : Five Year Capital Improvement Program)



3.
a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 1
51

Attachment: 5 Year Capital Improvement Program  (1204 : Five Year Capital Improvement Program)



3.
a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 1
52

Attachment: 5 Year Capital Improvement Program  (1204 : Five Year Capital Improvement Program)



3.
a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 1
53

Attachment: 5 Year Capital Improvement Program  (1204 : Five Year Capital Improvement Program)



3.
a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 1
54

Attachment: 5 Year Capital Improvement Program  (1204 : Five Year Capital Improvement Program)



3.
a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 1
55

Attachment: 5 Year Capital Improvement Program  (1204 : Five Year Capital Improvement Program)



3.
a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 1
56

Attachment: 5 Year Capital Improvement Program  (1204 : Five Year Capital Improvement Program)



3.
a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 1
57

Attachment: 5 Year Capital Improvement Program  (1204 : Five Year Capital Improvement Program)



3.
a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 1
58

Attachment: 5 Year Capital Improvement Program  (1204 : Five Year Capital Improvement Program)



3.
a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 1
59

Attachment: 5 Year Capital Improvement Program  (1204 : Five Year Capital Improvement Program)



3.
a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 1
60

Attachment: 5 Year Capital Improvement Program  (1204 : Five Year Capital Improvement Program)



3.
a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 1
61

Attachment: 5 Year Capital Improvement Program  (1204 : Five Year Capital Improvement Program)



3.
a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 1
62

Attachment: 5 Year Capital Improvement Program  (1204 : Five Year Capital Improvement Program)



3.
a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 1
63

Attachment: 5 Year Capital Improvement Program  (1204 : Five Year Capital Improvement Program)



3.
a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 1
64

Attachment: 5 Year Capital Improvement Program  (1204 : Five Year Capital Improvement Program)



3.
a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 1
65

Attachment: 5 Year Capital Improvement Program  (1204 : Five Year Capital Improvement Program)



3.
a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 1
66

Attachment: 5 Year Capital Improvement Program  (1204 : Five Year Capital Improvement Program)



3.
a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 1
67

Attachment: 5 Year Capital Improvement Program  (1204 : Five Year Capital Improvement Program)



3.
a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 1
68

Attachment: 5 Year Capital Improvement Program  (1204 : Five Year Capital Improvement Program)



3.
a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 1
69

Attachment: 5 Year Capital Improvement Program  (1204 : Five Year Capital Improvement Program)



3.
a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 1
70

Attachment: 5 Year Capital Improvement Program  (1204 : Five Year Capital Improvement Program)



3.
a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 1
71

Attachment: 5 Year Capital Improvement Program  (1204 : Five Year Capital Improvement Program)



3.
a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 1
72

Attachment: 5 Year Capital Improvement Program  (1204 : Five Year Capital Improvement Program)



3.
a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 1
73

Attachment: 5 Year Capital Improvement Program  (1204 : Five Year Capital Improvement Program)



3.
a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 1
74

Attachment: 5 Year Capital Improvement Program  (1204 : Five Year Capital Improvement Program)



3.
a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 1
75

Attachment: 5 Year Capital Improvement Program  (1204 : Five Year Capital Improvement Program)



3.
a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 1
76

Attachment: 5 Year Capital Improvement Program  (1204 : Five Year Capital Improvement Program)



3.
a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 1
77

Attachment: 5 Year Capital Improvement Program  (1204 : Five Year Capital Improvement Program)



3.
a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 1
78

Attachment: 5 Year Capital Improvement Program  (1204 : Five Year Capital Improvement Program)



3.
a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 1
79

Attachment: 5 Year Capital Improvement Program  (1204 : Five Year Capital Improvement Program)



3.
a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 1
80

Attachment: 5 Year Capital Improvement Program  (1204 : Five Year Capital Improvement Program)



3.
a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 1
81

Attachment: 5 Year Capital Improvement Program  (1204 : Five Year Capital Improvement Program)



3.
a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 1
82

Attachment: 5 Year Capital Improvement Program  (1204 : Five Year Capital Improvement Program)



3.
a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 1
83

Attachment: 5 Year Capital Improvement Program  (1204 : Five Year Capital Improvement Program)



3.
a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 1
84

Attachment: 5 Year Capital Improvement Program  (1204 : Five Year Capital Improvement Program)



3.
a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 1
85

Attachment: 5 Year Capital Improvement Program  (1204 : Five Year Capital Improvement Program)



3.
a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 1
86

Attachment: 5 Year Capital Improvement Program  (1204 : Five Year Capital Improvement Program)



3.
a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 1
87

Attachment: 5 Year Capital Improvement Program  (1204 : Five Year Capital Improvement Program)



3.
a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 1
88

Attachment: 5 Year Capital Improvement Program  (1204 : Five Year Capital Improvement Program)



3.
a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 1
89

Attachment: 5 Year Capital Improvement Program  (1204 : Five Year Capital Improvement Program)



3.
a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 1
90

Attachment: 5 Year Capital Improvement Program  (1204 : Five Year Capital Improvement Program)



3.
a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 1
91

Attachment: 5 Year Capital Improvement Program  (1204 : Five Year Capital Improvement Program)



3.
a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 1
92

Attachment: 5 Year Capital Improvement Program  (1204 : Five Year Capital Improvement Program)



3.
a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 1
93

Attachment: 5 Year Capital Improvement Program  (1204 : Five Year Capital Improvement Program)



3.
a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 1
94

Attachment: 5 Year Capital Improvement Program  (1204 : Five Year Capital Improvement Program)



3.
a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 1
95

Attachment: 5 Year Capital Improvement Program  (1204 : Five Year Capital Improvement Program)



3.
a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 1
96

Attachment: 5 Year Capital Improvement Program  (1204 : Five Year Capital Improvement Program)



3.
a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 1
97

Attachment: 5 Year Capital Improvement Program  (1204 : Five Year Capital Improvement Program)



3.
a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 1
98

Attachment: 5 Year Capital Improvement Program  (1204 : Five Year Capital Improvement Program)



3.
a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 1
99

Attachment: 5 Year Capital Improvement Program  (1204 : Five Year Capital Improvement Program)



3.
a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 2
00

Attachment: 5 Year Capital Improvement Program  (1204 : Five Year Capital Improvement Program)



3.
a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 2
01

Attachment: 5 Year Capital Improvement Program  (1204 : Five Year Capital Improvement Program)



3.
a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 2
02

Attachment: 5 Year Capital Improvement Program  (1204 : Five Year Capital Improvement Program)



3.
a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 2
03

Attachment: 5 Year Capital Improvement Program  (1204 : Five Year Capital Improvement Program)



3.
a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 2
04

Attachment: 5 Year Capital Improvement Program  (1204 : Five Year Capital Improvement Program)



3.
a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 2
05

Attachment: 5 Year Capital Improvement Program  (1204 : Five Year Capital Improvement Program)



3.
a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 2
06

Attachment: 5 Year Capital Improvement Program  (1204 : Five Year Capital Improvement Program)



3.
a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 2
07

Attachment: 5 Year Capital Improvement Program  (1204 : Five Year Capital Improvement Program)


	Agenda Packet
	Opening Ceremonies
	Call To Order
	Roll Call
	Roll Call

	Pledge of Allegiance

	Presentations, Introductions, Recognitions
	Approval of Agenda
	Consent Agenda
	I. Minutes Approval
	1. Minutes of Oct 13, 2015 6:00 PM
	Printout: Minutes of Oct 13, 2015 6:00 PM


	Public Hearing
	2. 1185 : Social Security
	Printout: 1185 : Social Security
	a. Draft Conditions of Approval
	b. Standard Exhibts
	c. Land Use Compliance Review Application
	d. Variance Application
	e. Site Plan
	f. Elevations
	g. Edison Approval Letter
	h. Outer Highway Abandonment Document
	i. Tract Map 4220
	j. Chapter 9.66 LUCR
	k. Chapter 9.73 Variance
	l. Chapter 9.09 Commercial Districts


	Department Reports
	3. 1204 : Five Year Capital Improvement Program
	Printout: 1204 : Five Year Capital Improvement Program
	a. 5 Year Capital Improvement Program


	Future Agenda Items
	Public Comments
	Staff Reports and Comments
	

	Commissioner Reports and Comments
	Announcements
	

	Adjournment

	Appendix
	1.1 · Minutes of Oct 13, 2015 6:00 PM
	2 · 1185 : Social Security
	2.a · Draft Conditions of Approval
	2.b · Standard Exhibts
	2.c · Land Use Compliance Review Application
	2.d · Variance Application
	2.e · Site Plan
	2.f · Elevations
	2.g · Edison Approval Letter
	2.h · Outer Highway Abandonment Document
	2.i · Tract Map 4220
	2.j · Chapter 9.66 LUCR
	2.k · Chapter 9.73 Variance
	2.l · Chapter 9.09 Commercial Districts

	3 · 1204 : Five Year Capital Improvement Program
	3.a · 5 Year Capital Improvement Program



